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BE | T REMEMBERED t hat the above-entitled and
nunbered matter cane on regularly to be heard before the
Ari zona Power Plant and Transm ssion Line Siting
Commttee at Delta Hotels by Marriott, 200 North
Centenni al Way, Mesa, Arizona, commencing at 1:07 p.m on

the 27th day of June, 2022.

BEFORE: PAUL A. KATZ, Chairnman

ZACHARY BRANUM Ari zona Corporation Comnr ssion
(via vi deoconf erence)
LEONARD DRAGO, Departnent of Environnmental Quality
DAVI D FRENCH, Arizona Departnent of Water Resources
JAMES PALMER, Agriculture Interests
MARY HAMAMY, Incorporated Cties and Towns
Rl CK GRI NNELL, Counti es
(vi a videoconf erence)
JACK HAENI CHEN, General Public
MARGARET "TOBY" LITTLE, PE, General Public
(vi a videoconf erence)

APPEARANCES:
For the Applicant:

JENNI NGS, STROUSS & SALMON, P.L.C.

M. Al bert Acken

One East Washington Street, Suite 1900
Phoeni x, Ari zona 85004

and

SALT Rl VER PRQIECT

Ms. Alysha G | bert

At t or ney

P. O Box 52025

Legal Services PAB381
Phoeni x, Arizona 85072-2025
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CHWN. KATZ: W can go on the record now.
Wl cone, everyone. This is the tine set for a hearing to
determ ne whether or not a Certificate of Environmental
Conpatibility should be issued to our petitioner,

Huckl eberry, SRP Huckl eberry Project. And in a nonent, |

w |l introduce counsel.
But before we do that, | would |li ke to have,
starting at ny far right wwth M. Haenichen, | have our

menbers who are here identify thenselves for our hearing
recor d.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: | ' m Jack Haeni chen
representing the public.

MEMBER HAMMY: Mary Hamway, cities and towns.

MEMBER FRENCH: David French, Arizona Depart nent
of Water Resources.

MEMBER DRAGO. Len Drago, Arizona Departnent of
Environmental Quality.

MEMBER PALMER: Jim Pal ner representing
agricul ture.

CHWN. KATZ: And | see appearing virtually are
Rick Ginnell, Zach Branum and Toby Little.

| understand you had a little m shap, Toby. |
hope you're doing nmuch better, but I'mglad to see your
smling face this afternoon. So if you need to take a
break early, let us know.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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The other thing | asked at the | ast hearing,
because we had one nenber, soneone who isn't present wth
you people virtually, that never was on virtually and
continued to be on and off. | would ask you, whenever
possi ble, to please remain -- keep your video on, even if
you have to take a quick trip to the restroomor to grab
a bite to eat.

The reason for that is that in some of these
nmeetings, we're short of having a quorumor could be if
we |lost a single person. So | need to nake sure and the
rest of the Commttee needs to nmake sure that whoever is
appearing virtually is present with us. Even if you're
off screen, it won't be troubling. But try to keep the
video going if at all possible.

And there are no notions to intervene.

| will introduce now M. Bert Acken, who is
representing the applicant. And | think he -- this
doesn't need to be your opening remarks, but you nay have
a fewthings to share wwth us. And we're also going to
take a vote shortly as to whether we take a tour or not.

MR ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairnman.

Good afternoon, Menbers of the Commttee. Bert
Acken of Jennings Strouss & Sal nobn on behalf of the
applicant, Salt River Project Agricultural |nprovenent
and Power District.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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Wth nme at counsel table is ny co-counsel,
Alysha G| bert, in-house with SRP.

CHWN. KATZ: And also seated quietly in the back
of the roomis Meghan G abel, who represents Salt River
Project. She's just going to be observing these
proceedi ngs to report to SRP. And she may have sone
public coments to nake, but she's not going to be
actively participating as an attorney at -- in these
parti cul ar proceedi ngs.

Anyt hing el se that you wanted to say up front?

MR ACKEN. Yes. Thank you, M. Chairman. Just
to clarify the record, Ms. Grabel represents Meta.

CHWN. KATZ: kay, Meta. Yeah, she told ne that
a mnute ago. |'mgetting senile.

MR ACKEN: And so as you will hear shortly,
this project is being proposed to interconnect with a
data center being devel oped by Meta, formerly known as
Facebook.

| did want to bring up one prelimnary natter,
and it relates to the public notice of the public coment
session. So the notice of publication that was published
in The Arizona Republic and the Mesa paper were correct
that said that the public coment session will be tonight
at 5: 30.

One of the enmils and one of the postcards were

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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sent out in June saying that there would be public
comment period on Tuesday, June 27th. Well, of course
today is June 27th, so it was a typographical error that
it referred to Tuesday.

So that was done in a postcard that was mail ed
out June 13th. Wen the error was discovered, a
repl acement postcard was nail ed on June 15t h.

Also, as | nentioned, there was an enmail that
went out on June 15th that had that Tuesday, June 27t h,
public comment session noted. It's that sane day.

That's when the -- that's when the typographical error
was di scovered. A revised email went out to the custoner
and stakehol der distribution list that sane day
correcting the date.

W wanted to nake the Commttee aware -- see how
you wanted to handle that. W did receive one call or
perhaps an email that cane in that just said, Hey, I
noticed that the date was wong. |It's actually -- you
know, it should say Monday and not Tuesday.

We don't know or expect or have any idea whet her

anyone will show up tonorrow, but we did want the
Commttee to know at a m ninmum you know, we w |l have
staff -- SRP staff here to take public comrent shoul d

soneone show up. W can have Carolyn stay to transcri be
any comments that nmay arise. And the third option would

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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be, you know, this is a relatively short direct case and
it's a short transmssion line. And | anticipate that
our direct case will be finished this afternoon, and we
woul d nove into deliberations in the nornal course

t onor r ow nor ni ng.

One idea would be that the Commttee recesses
after deliberations but before a vote in order to all ow
for the opportunity should soneone show up at 5:30 to
provide public comrent. And then at that tine, the
Commttee could take a vote based on any additi onal
public comment if any.

W realize it's, you know, an inconveni ence. W
apol ogi ze. You know, there's just some options on how to
manage it. |'msure there were others. You know, the
ni ce thing about having all this virtual technology is
not everyone would have to come back or stay dependi ng on
how you wanted to do it whether if you decided that you
did want to wait for the public comment, you know, that
could be done -- the votes could be done virtually
Tuesday eveni ng or Wednesday norni ng. But wanted to nake
the Commttee aware of that so that you could discuss
anongst yourselves howto -- howto handle it.

| think our recommendation to be to take the
vote after that public comment session and just in case
soneone were to show up and make public comment. W want

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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to make sure that everybody feels they have a fair and

full opportunity to participate. And so that -- again,
that's the applicant's recommendati on and -- and ny
apol ogi es.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask you a question,

M. Acken. Was -- was the m sstatenent 6:00 tonorrow
rat her than 5:30 today, or was it 6:00 today rather than
5: 307

MR ACKEN. It said Tuesday, June 27th, at 5: 30.
So it was the right date of June 27th and the right tine
at 5:30, but it said Tuesday instead of Nbonday.

CHWN. KATZ: And the other notice was for 5:30
t oday, correct?

MR ACKEN. Correct. The notice that was
publ i shed, which is the statutorily required notice, said
5: 30 today.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. | don't know if anybody from
the Commttee wants to make any recommendati on. W don't

need i mredi ately a notion, but we can have a di scussi on.

We probably ought to -- even though we m ght be done -- |
mean, | don't know whether we want to take our vote
before, like, noon or 2:00 tonorrow and then just wait to

see if we have any additional comrents. And then, if
necessary, we could always reconsi der our position.
But so far, has there been any public opposition

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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by way of letter or phone call or email?

MR ACKEN:. M. Chairman, there has not. W --
as you see, we have no intervention. | don't believe
that there have been any letters docketed in the file.
And ny co-counsel is confirmng that that's correct.

At the open house, we did receive comments from
near by residents regardi ng, you know, the potential for
under groundi ng and things of that nature, the typical
comments that you would expect. And Ms. Horgen will be
prepared to present testinony on to that effect.

But in the -- I would characterize this as on
the far | ower end of public comment. There's been nany,
many opportunities for public engagenent, and our sense
is that the public understands the project, understands
t he need, and has been satisfied with the naterials
presented to date.

| would not be surprised if we have no public
comenters tonight, for exanple, but that's yet to be
seen.

CHWN. KATZ: Don't -- we don't need to strictly
need foll ow Robert's Rules of Order or need to do that,
but do any nenbers of the Committee have any suggestions
or comments? | don't know if we need to have a fornal
vote as to whether, if we're done on tine, we resolve the
CEC tonorrow or m dday or whenever is appropriate and

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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then wait to see at 5:30 whether or not we have any
addi ti onal comments. Because | don't think we want to be
in a situation of having one or nore people call us

t onorrow aft er noon.

The other thing is to wait until after that and
not settle the CEC until 5:45 or 6:00. And | don't know
if we want to do that or not.

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: As a representative of the
public, | think it's inportant that we not actually take
a vote until after the public has had an opportunity to
coment just in case there's even one commenter. | think
what M. Katz has suggested, that we vote tonorrow
evening after the public coment period, even though
we're all appearing virtually, mght be the best thing to
do.

| think it would be a shane if sonebody showed
up and had a comment and then discovered that we had
al ready nade a decision and they didn't have any say in
it. Just ny opinion. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Any other thoughts?

VEMBER GRI NNELL: | think -- M. Chairnan, this
iIs Rck Ginnell, sir. Can you hear ne?

AUDI OVl SUAL TECH. Yes, we can hear you.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: Frankly, when you refer to
Robert's Rules of Order, statutorily, the correct
information is put out for a public hearing today. Am]
correct, Counsel?

CHWN. KATZ: Yes. There was one numiling, |
beli eve, that gave the right date and the right tine but
the wong day of the week. It said Tuesday i nstead of
Monday. And it was -- got corrected.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Right. That, under the | aw,
woul d satisfy a public hearing. Am1 correct?

CHWN. KATZ: Well, unless we had sonebody
saying, | got this postcard. | didn't venture any
further to investigate, and I'm now here at 5:30 on
Tuesday. Even though it's the 28th rather than the 27th
and we don't give that person the opportunity to give us
i nput .

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Then | would -- | would
recommrend we not even review the CEC application until
all public information is presented.

CHWN. KATZ: And we don't need to nake a
decision right now, but | think that legally we would
probably have to do that but what we could do -- go
ahead, Mary, Ms. -- Menber Hamnay.

MEMBER HAMMY: So are you saying that we're
going to do the CEC line by line by line starting

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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tonorrow ni ght at 5:307?

CHWN. KATZ: WwWell --

MEMBER HAMAMY: |'m not avail abl e.

CHWN. KATZ: Well, what 1'd recomend instead of
that, 5:30, we may have anybody here. | don't think we
want to stay here until 7:00 at night.

MEMBER HAMAAY: No, | don't --

CHWN. KATZ: So what we could do is cone back on
Wednesday just for reviewing the CEC. | don't know if we
could review it and approve it before the public comrent
was cl osed.

MEMBER HAMMY: Well, we could review it but not
take the final vote.

CHWN. KATZ: | nean, | guess what we could do is
we could go line by line --

MEMBER HAMAMY: Line by line and get it done.

CHWN. KATZ: And approve -- and approve the
provi sions but not vote as to whether or not to approve
it.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Correct.

CHWN. KATZ: And then if there's a public
comment that causes us to want to add any additi onal
conditions to it, we could always add that before we take
the final vote, which we could do | guess --

MEMBER HAMMY: Virtually at 5:30 tonorrow

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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ni ght .

CHWN. KATZ: -- 5:30 tonorrow.

| mean, | think we can review the CEC and
indicate the conditions we want in it and those that we
don't but not vote on whether to issue it or deny it and
then vote to issue it or deny it after the 5:30 public
coment period tonorrow.

Woul d there be any objection to doing it that
way ?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: | think that's what we'll plan on
doi ng, then.

The other matter that | wanted to take up wth
you is | attended a prehearing conference with M. Acken
and Menber Grabel and applicant representatives before |
left town with -- a week ago, | think, Thursday or Friday
before | ast week. And | was advised and confirned that
we're dealing with a half-a-mle-long transm ssion |ine
that virtually -- or actually, not virtually, runs across
private property fromthe substation to the new Mta
facility. And | don't think we gain nuch by taking a
tour of that facility.

Vell, one, it's ny understanding, M. Acken, am
| correct, that we couldn't even access the Meta facility
because of ongoi ng constructi on?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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MR ACKEN:. M. Chairman, that's correct. W
have put together a propose in-person tour if the
Committee likes to do so. It will be limted by the
ongoi ng construction that's occurring on the Mta
facility plus restrictions on accessing State | and where
the transm ssion line wll cross.

So it's not our recommendation to do an
i n-person tour. W do have one of the best virtual tours
|"ve seen, |'ve had the pleasure of presenting, that we
wll present to the Committee. And it will provide, we
hope and that you agree, a terrific representation of
what this facility as well as the surroundi ng devel opnent
wth the data center will ook |Iike upon conpletion. So
it would be our recommendation to stick with the virtual
tour here.

CHWN. KATZ: And if you take a | ook at the map
that's on your place card and is al so being presented on
the right screen in the hearing room it's a short |ine,
half a mle approxinmately, fromthe substation to the new
facility. | don't think we gain nuch by touring.

And | have one other selfish thing. Next tine |
see you, | want to still be licensed to practice | aw
And | need one hour of continuing education, which has to
be done by this Friday in our office on Wednesday. It's
of feri ng one-and-a-hal f-hour continuing | egal education

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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programfrom1:30 to 3. So I'd like to be able to attend
that. OQherwise, | can get into trouble with the State
Bar. But this hearing would take priority if need be.

MR ACKEN. And, M. Chairman, | wsh | only had
an hour and a half of CLE remai ning before the end of the
nonth, but | share -- | share that perspective.

CHWN. KATZ: Gay. Do | have a notion one way
or the other as to whether or not we take a tour?

MEMBER PALMER: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER PALMER: Havi ng read the prehearing
conference transcript and | ooking at the fact that very
little of this is accessible, it's very short in | ength,
it would seem not a good use of our tinme. And |I'm
normal |y an advocate for taking these tours, but in this
instance, | think it would be just as well served to do
the virtual tour. So | make a notion that we di spense
with the on-site tour.

CHWN. KATZ: |s there a second?

MEMBER FRENCH: Second.

CHWN. KATZ: It's been seconded by David French.
| s there any di scussi on?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Al those, then, in favor of
di spensing with the tour on this particul ar project,

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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pl ease say "aye."

(A chorus of "ayes.")

CHWN. KATZ: Anybody opposed?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: W won't take the tour, which neans
that we should be done with the evidence either today or
early tonorrow. And | won't burden us with any nore
procedural i npedi nents.

| s there an opening remark, Counsel, that you
woul d i ke to nake?

MR ACKEN:. Thank you, Chairnman, just very
briefly.

We appreciate the opportunity to present this
project to you, the Project Huckl eberry.

As you'll see on the slide on the right that's
been marked Rl, SRP is requesting approval for a new
substati on and an approximately 0.5-m | e double-circuit
230kV transm ssion line to serve Meta's new data center
under devel opnment in the Cty of Mesa.

The new substation will be | ocated on Meta-owned
land in the area shown in the green rectangle on R1. And
if I could ask one of ny panel nenbers who has control of
the -- thank you -- to show -- highlight -- excuse ne.

Go back to the slide before. |If you could highlight the
substation | ocation. Thank you.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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The transm ssion line corridor is shown in the
green hatch that M. Wolfolk is highlighting right now
It will be located on State | and that you see shown in
t hat blue-purple color. And it will |ocated between a
flood control channel shown in blue and a 69kV
transm ssion |ine under construction shown in yell ow.

CHW. KATZ: And | don't knowif we -- was that
a cursor that we were using so that the virtual people
could foll ow you?

MR ACKEN. That's correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Gkay. Go ahead.

MR ACKEN:. Yes. And so M. Wolfolk is
patiently using the cursor, the green cursor, so that it
can be seen in the roomand also virtually.

The transm ssion line is going to interconnect
w th the Southeast Power Link transmi ssion line that is
currently under construction shown in blue running north
to south on Slide R1

We are requesting approval for a 100-foot
right-of-way within a 300-foot corridor on State | and for
the transmi ssion line and then the area shown in the
rectangle on private |and for the substation.

W will have three witnesses. You see them
sitting over there anxiously, eagerly awaiting their
opportunity to present testinony this afternoon.
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Kevin Wol folk is the project nmanager for the
project. And he will provide testinony regardi ng SRP,
the project itself, and why it is needed. He will also
present a virtual tour that | referenced earlier.

Kenda Pollio, many of you, if not all of you,
have seen her testify before this Commttee, wll provide
testi nony regardi ng the environnental conpatibility of
the site and the project itself.

Sam Hor gen, al so an experienced w tness that
many of you have seen, will provide testinony regarding
SRP' s robust public notice and public outreach process
for this project.

| want to orient the Commttee to a couple
docunents. You should have -- sone of you wll have a
smal|l binder. The rest of you will have it on your
tablets. But we have a handful of exhibits.

The application that's been narked for
identification as SRP No. 1.

Qur slides are marked for identification as
SRP- 2.

And as you can see, we have left and right
screens, and the slides are |abeled L2, R2, so on and so
forth, in hopes to make it easy for the Commttee, those
wat ching virtually, and those reading the transcri pt
|ater to follow al ong
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Exhibit 3 is a supplenent to the public notice
exhibit materials that were included in Exhibit J to the
application. Pursuant to the Procedural O der, we
provi de an update of public outreach material since the
application was filed. That's what's contained in
Exhi bit 3.

SRP-4 is a letter fromthe Chairman -- excuse
me. This is a letter from Conm ssion Staff to the
Chai rman responding to a letter fromthe Chairman
requesting Conmi ssion Staff's input on the project --
project's effect on reliability of the regional
transm ssion system So we w |l discuss that.

And then Exhibit 5 are two letters of support
t hat have been received, one fromthe Cty of Mesa and
t he other fromthe Mesa Chanber of Conmerce.

W al so have project placemats. On one side
is -- is a base map entitled Project Huckl eberry that
shows what | showed earlier on R2 superinposed on a
flyover aerial of the area that shows specifically the
proj ect conponents we're requesting and gives you a sense
of the area. Again, this is a rapidly devel opnent --
devel oping area. And so where you see disturbed ground
in preparation for construction, infrastructure is being
devel oped as we speak.

The other side is entitled Project Conponents.
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It |labels the two project conmponents that are subject of
this application, which is, again, the transm ssion |ine
corridor and the 230/ 69kV substation as well as sone of
the other features that | nentioned, the flood control
channel , 69kV transm ssion line, and the Sout heast Power
Link transm ssion |ine under devel opnent.

So wth that, | don't have anything further as
far as introductory remarks. Happy to turn it over to
the Commttee if there are specific things you want to
hear us address. But, otherw se, we are prepared to nove
forward with our direct case.

CHWN. KATZ: And in a mnute I'Il have you do
that. |I'mhappy to do that. | just wanted to know, |'m
assum ng that notices went to the State Land Departnent,
to Maricopa County agencies as m ght be appropriate, and
to the Gty of Mesa.

Are there any other governnental notices that
had to be issued?

MR. ACKEN:. Thank you, M. Chairman. No, there
were not. Those were the three affected jurisdictions to
whi ch notice was required to be provided, and that was
done so pursuant to statute, regulation, and the
Procedural Order.

CHWN. KATZ: Gay. And I'massumng there are
no federal issues, NEPA or otherw se, because there's no
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funding or federal land -- federal funding or federal
| and i nvol ved?

MR ACKEN:. M. Chairman, that's correct.
Wt hout federal funding, federal |ands involved, there is
no NEPA connection to this project, so no NEPA eval uation
was done.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very nuch. So if you're
ready -- are you going to have one witness testify at a
time, or would you |like themall be affirned or sworn?

MR ACKEN. | would ask that they all be sworn.
W will be kind of doing it in order rather than going
back and forth, but | think it'd be easier just to swear
themall in at once and treat them as a panel.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. Wat | wll ask is |
can adm ni ster an oath or an affirmation. And you don't

all have to be in agreenent. W can do one and then the

ot her.

But does -- are there any preference of our
Commttee -- not the Commttee but of our wtness
menber s?

MR WOOLFOLK: Affirmation.

M5. HORGEN: That's fi ne.

M5. POLLIG  Yes.

CHWN. KATZ: Al three of our w tnesses, and we
won't need to nane them they have all been introduced,
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have said they prefer an affirmation. | don't need you
to stand up. W don't need to be that formal, but if you
woul d, pl ease raise your hand.

(Kevin Whol fol k, Kenda Pollio, and Samant ha
Horgen were duly affirmed, en masse, by the Chairman.)

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you very nuch

And, M. Acken, the floor is yours.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairnan.

W will start off with the project manager,

M. Wool f ol k.

KEVI N WOOLFOLK, KENDA POLLI O SAMANTHA HORCGEN
called as wtnesses as a panel on behalf of Applicant,
havi ng been previously affirnmed by the Chairman to speak
the truth and nothing but the truth, were exam ned and

testified as foll ows:

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
BY MR ACKEN
Q Pl ease state your nane and busi ness address for
t he record.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Kevin Wholfolk. 1500 North M|

Avenue, Tenpe, Arizona 85281.

Q And by whom are you enpl oyed and i n what
capacity?
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A (MR WOOLFOLK) Salt River Project, and | am a
seni or engi neer.

Q And take a mnute and provide the Conmttee with
sonme information regardi ng your educati onal background
and wor k experi ence.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Sure.

So | have a Bachel or of Science in nechani cal
engi neering from New Mexico State University.

|'"ve been with SRP a little over 18 years, and
|'"ve had a -- kind of a variety of positions. So | had a
seni or analyst role in the Resource Pl anni ng and
Devel opnent G oup. Then | was a |l ead analyst in the
Resource Acquisition Goup. And then, nost recently, |I'm

a systemengineer in the Strategic Systems Projects

G oup.
Q And descri be your role in Project Huckl eberry.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah.

So I'mthe project nmanager, and |'ve been
overseeing and directing all aspects of the permtting of

this project.

Q Ms. Pollio, please state your nane and busi ness
addr ess.

A (M5. POLLIO Kenda Pol li o.

Q By whom are you enpl oyed?

A (Ms. POLLIO KP Environnental.
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Q And provide the Commttee a sumary of your
educati onal and work experi ence.

A (Ms. POLLIO So | have a Bachel or of Science in
envi ronnent al studi es and urban and regi onal pl anning
fromFlorida State University, naster's of science
in international environnent policy fromthe University
of South Flori da.

l"man AICP, which is an Anerican Institute of
Certified Planners. | have 32 years of environnental
consul ti ng experience, specializing in transm ssion
| i nes, generation, fromright-of-way assessnent, siting,
acqui sition, permtting, and conpli ance.

| ve worked on over 175 transm ssion |ines and

power plants and testified before this Commttee 18

times.
Q And what is your role in this project?
A (Ms. POLLIO So I'mthe project manager for

KP Environnental, and we are the environnental

consul t ant . W assisted in the environnental studies and

preparation of the Certificate of Environmental
Conpatibility as well as assisted with the public
process.

Q And | ast, but not |east, Ms. Horgen. Pl ease
state your nane and busi ness address.

A (M. HORGEN) Sanmantha Horgen. | work at 1500
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North MII Avenue, Tenpe, Arizona, 85281.

Q And by whom are you enpl oyed and i n what
capacity?
A (M5. HORGEN) | work at SRP in the Public

| nvol venent Group as a siting representative. M
position pursues constructive interaction and engagenent
wth the public, usually on siting projects,
subtransm ssi on 69kV projects, and also -- |'ve al so
worked at a well site expansion project. And we follow
the project fromconstruction through -- we follow the
project through siting, if there is siting, through
construction and in service.

Q Pl ease summari ze your educati onal background and
wor k experi ence.

A (M5. HORGEN) | have a business managenent
degree from Arizona State University. | also have a
master's in business adm nistration from Wstern
| nternational University.

| have been a public and private siting rep for
about 14 years. And then four of those other years were
t hrough state and | ocal governnment relations. So a total

of 18 years working at SRP

Q And what is your role in this project?

A (M5. HORGEN) | amthe lead in facilitating the
public outreach for this project. | remain the point of
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contact, again, fromthe beginning to the end, and I
provide critical feedback fromthe comunity to our
proj ect team or managenent. And we try to always | ook at
the project fromthe public's point of view while still
managi ng to acconplish the project.

Q Thank you al l

M. Wolfolk, let's start off by providing the
Commttee wth sone background information regardi ng SRP

A (MR WOOLFOLK)  Sure.

So SRP's power district was fornmed in 1937. And
since the begi nning, we've been, you know, engaged wth
nmuni ci palities to support economc growh and projects
i ke this by serving the electrical | oad.

SRP is one of the |argest power entities in the
US wth a service territory of roughly 2,900 square
mles and approximately a mllion custoners. W have --
we're a vertically integrated utility, which neans we've
got generation, transm ssion, and distribution. W have
a diverse resource portfolio as well that includes
nat ural gas, hydro, solar, w nd, geothermal, nuclear, and
coal. And we use all these resources to help neet our
sumrer peaking | oad of over 7,500 negawatts.

Q Describe SRP's service territory shown on the
slide |I've marked as R7.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah. So on Slide R7, as you
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can see, we -- our electric service territory is nade up
of the retail service area. This serves the Metro
Phoeni x area and supporting cities with SRP serving
nostly the East Valley and APS serving the northern area.

SRP al so has the eastern mning area. This
region runs to Roosevelt Lake. And while SRP doesn't
have distribution systemto serve custoners, we do have
dedi cated transm ssion to serve mning custoners in that
ar ea.

Q Next, 1'd |ike you to describe SRP' s 230kV
transm ssi on systemin the general area of the project.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah.

So on Slide R8, you'll see that this is the SRP
230kV systemin the east. This -- this map does a good
job at a coupl e things.

First, it shows the portion of our service
territory that is -- has had the nost growh activity.

So you mght be famliar with some of these -- these
projects like the Abel -Pfister-Ball, Scott, Southeast
Power Link, Project HIP. These are all recent projects
t hat have been constructed or sited in this area.

The other thing I want to point out on -- out on
this map is that it -- the 230kV systemis a | ooped
architecture, neaning that it has diverse connections
that increases reliability. 1It's one of the reasons that
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t hese hi gh-tech customers such as data centers or

sem - conduct or manufacturers like to site in this region
because of the increased reliability. The 230kV system
al so has hi gher poles and hi gher and | arger phase spacing
bet ween the phases, which inherently increases its
reliability by naking it | ess susceptible to wldlife and
weat her events.

CHWN. KATZ: Just -- | have one question. Wat
is that -- there's in the key a double circuit, phase
tied line, and it's just a snmall portion up toward the
nort hwest by Corbell. What is that particular |line as
distinct fromfuture or existing 230kV |ines?

MR WOOLFOLK: | am not sure exactly what that
represents, double circuit, phase tied |ine.

CHWN. KATZ: Well, | don't think it's inportant.
It's not critical to this project. | just thought you
m ght be able to clarify that. But | think the key is
ot herw se sel f-expl anatory.

Q BY MR. ACKEN. Next, describe the
non-jurisdictional 69kV distribution systemlocated in
the vicinity of the Project.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah. Well, non-jurisdictional,
| thought it was inportant to show SRP's 69kV systemin
the sane vicinity as this Project Huckleberry. As you
can see, the 69kV system al so has a | ooped architecture
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that serves for reliability purposes in its own right.
We're actually planning to serve Meta initially fromthe
69kV system However, the 69kV system does have
limtations. It isn't as reliable due to the shorter
spans of the phase facing. It is nore susceptible to
wi ldlife and weat her events. And so, for this reason,
hi gh-tech custoners such as Meta prefer to be connected
to the 230kV system

Q Next, describe specifically why this project
with the 230kV transm ssion |ine and substation is
needed.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Sure.

So Meta did announce the plans to build their
new data center in August of 2021, |ocated, as Bert said,
in Elliot -- on Elliot Road and Ell sworth in Mesa,

Ari zona.

After SRP did analysis, it was determ ned that
really to adequately and reliably serve their |oad, 230kV
i nfrastructure would be needed. So we are proposing to
have that SRP-owned dedi cated substation as well as the
230kV transm ssion |ine.

Q So describe the specific infrastructure for

whi ch you are seeking a CEC in this application.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah.
So on Slide R12, you'll see this map again.
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This spells out the specific infrastructure needed, which
i ncl udes the proposed Prickly Pear 230kV Substation as
wel | as a 230kV double-circuit transm ssion |line that
would run a half mle placed within that transm ssion

corridor shown on the map in the striped green.

Q Next, describe the project schedule to serve
Met a.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yeah. So | wll note on -- on

Slide L14 on your left, this is an overview of SRP's
proposed schedul e outlining sonme of our key m | estones
and pl an dates.

And then on Slide R14, this is our correspondi ng
map that will showase these specific mlestones outlined
on the schedul e.

So we'll take a little tinme and orient oursel ves
wth R14 on this map. This shows our project study area
outlined in blue. You'll notice that Loop 202 as well as
Elli ot Road running west-east, and then north-south is
El | sworth Road.

Al so shown on this map is that existing flood
control channel that runs across the Arizona State | and
hi ghlighted in blue. That's undevel oped State | and.

So our first mlestone we showis that SRP is
pl anning to construct the Prickly Pear 69kV Sw tchyard
and then a 69kV | oop-in and have this conpleted to serve
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Meta's initial |oad by Decenber of 2022.

And then the next set of mlestones, we add sone
additional lines to showase. So in April of 2023, we
plan to place the Scott 69kV Substation in service as
well as the north section of the previously certificated
Sout heast Power Link |line shown in blue. WMaybe | can get
the cursor right.

So this is the north section. And then to
the -- just to the south, that's Scott Substation. Those
w Il be conpleted by April of 2023.

And then also conpleted in 2023, we plan to have
the 69kV doubl e-circuit line running fromthe Scott
Substation north and across the State land -- State | and
to connect into the Prickly Pear 69kV Sw tchyard.

And then lastly, by April 2024, we will plan to
have the proposed Prickly Pear Substation if the CEC is
granted conpleted. This wll be the 230kV infrastructure
as well as the 230 double-circuit line that runs a half
mle and follows that 69kV structure as well as the
exi sting flood control channel across State | and.

MEMBER HAMMY: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Hamnay.

MEMBER HAMMY: Yes. \Were is the Meta Data
Center physically | ocated?

MR WOOLFOLK: Ch, yeah, it's just -- that is
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just to the north of that Prickly Pear Substation, the
proposed Prickly Pear Substation. That will be Mta's
canpus, the actual data center itself. And we will see
that in sone |later renderings and the virtual tour as
wel | .

MEMBER HAMMY:  Thank you.

MR ACKEN. And for the record, the cursor was
showi ng the general area of the Meta facility.

CHWN. KATZ: Go ahead.

Q BY MR ACKEN: Next, | want to tal k about the

proj ect conponents. Again, the jurisdictional

conponents.

VWhat will the substation | ook |ike?
A (MR WOOLFOLK)  Yeah.
So on Slide L19, w'll start there, this is a

rendering | ooking at kind of a bird' s-eye view off of
El | sworth Road | ooking east into the substation. So I|'l

try to get ny cursor real quick if | can go to the left.

Oh, maybe it's just on the right. | apol ogize.
So looking, like | said, bird s-eye east into
t he substation, you'll notice the 230kV drop pole, the

structure in the mddle. This will tie into the 230kV
infrastructure into the forefront. You'll note al so
runni ng north and south on the boundary of the substation
property are the 69kV circuits that will be built
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initially to serve Meta' s | oad.

To the left is the control house.

To the right, you see sone retention basins.

If | nove further to the east, you can see SRFP' s
230kV transforners that step it down to the 69kV
i nfrastructure.

So now i n the background, we can see sone of the
69kV breakers and switches that now connect into the
furthest piece of equipnent you see, which is -- that
wll be Meta's substation. And that has their
transformati on equi pnrent as well as their switch gear

So then if | ook over to Slide R19, this takes
us into an isonetric view of the sane substation. And
what we can see here is we can see kind of a better | ook
at Meta's owned electrical infrastructure, as | said,

li ke the switch gear over here, their transformation
equi pnent and 69kV infrastructure.

And then notably highlighted in green is the
actual 230kV infrastructure that we're applying for the
CEC, which includes the transforners, breakers,

di sconnect switches, and ultimately the start of the
230kV doubl e-circuit transm ssion |ine that runs over.
Q Next, describe the requested corridor and

right-of-way for the transmssion |ine.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes.
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So SRP is seeking a 300-foot-w de corridor on
State | and for the 230kV double-circuit |line and the
facilities needed in the substation. SRP will then, of
course, select the final alignnent in a 100-f oot
right-of-way within that transm ssion |ine corridor.

On the right on Slide R20, we see a map
showcasi ng that 300-foot-w de corridor on the State | and
hasht agged i n green, hash-lined connecting to, of course,
t he Sout heast Power Link as well as the -- the green box
which is the proposed Prickly Pear Substation that would
contain the 230kV facilities.

| wll note that SRP did secure a 69kV
ri ght-of-way, and that does have room for the 230kV
transmssion line if the CEC was granted, and we applied

it and was granted that in Decenber of 2021 for that 69kV

i ne.

Q And who granted that right-of-way for the 69kV
i ne?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Arizona State Departnent of
Land -- or Land Departnent, excuse ne.

Q And so that right-of-way is where the portion --

that woul d also include the portion of the project here

that is on State | and?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) That is correct.
Q VWhat are the typical power structures that you
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antici pate usi ng?
A. (MR WOOLFOLK)  Yeah.
So let's -- if we look at R21, but 1'lIl first

ki nd of note that typical 230kV poles in this project

wll be the two -- the double-circuit structures. On
average, they'll be 150 feet tall. |In our project, it
wll not exceed 199 feet. These poles are placed every

600 to 900 feet.

And then on Slide R21, this is a rendering of
t he exact 230kV double-circuit transm ssion structure
that will be utilized in this project.

Q Next, 1'd like you to explain why this route was
selected. And could you take a few m nutes and descri be
that for the Comm ttee.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Definitely.

So on Slide R23, again, we see the simlar map
t hat we' ve been show ng.

So when SRP | ooked at the proposed Prickly Pear
Subst ati on when we'd be converting it fromthe sw tchyard
and we | ooked at the cl osest interconnection point --
poi nt of interconnection, which is the previously
certificated Sout heast Power Link line, the north portion
of that SPL line, shown in blue -- |I guess | could --
there we go. Shown in bl ue.

We | ooked at this, and the shortest route really
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was to run across that undevel oped State land. So it
provi ded the shortest distance. It would also follow

t hat existing flood control channel, so existing
features. It would also, of course, follow that existing
69kV | i ne.

SRP did |look at alternate route alternatives,

i ncluding the north route and the south route shown in
red. But both of these routes, you know, they did

take -- they were a further distance of run, and it woul d
expose commercial, residential, and industrial custoners
to nore visible 230kV lines if we -- if we were to sel ect
t hose routes.

So, in conclusion, it really made sense to
just -- the half mle follow ng those existing features
and connect to SPL for the shortest distance.

MR ACKEN:. The next portion of M. Wolfolk's
testinony will be the virtual tour, so we'll take a
nonment here in order to have that upl oaded.

Ckay. That was very fast. Faster than |
expected. Thank you.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) yeah.

So we're going to start this virtual tour
| ooki ng northeast onto the property. So you can see that
Meta's canpus sits on 389 acres. And this canmpus is
really boundaried by Elliot Road and El |l sworth. Al so
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visible in this map in the forefront is Loop 202. So
just to orient ourselves there, we're | ooking northeast
on this property.

Also visible on this map -- I'mgoing to
hi ghlight -- there's the existing flood control channel.
These green boxes represent that 300-foot-w de
transm ssion corridor that we're seeking CEC as well as
connecting into the proposed Prickly Pear Substation
| ocated just adjacent to Meta's canpus.

So we'll start to nove towards the substation
itself. And as we nove, we can see the certificated
230kV Sout heast Power Link. This is the northern portion
line that will be conpleted in April of 2023. Just to
the -- adjacent to that are snaller 69kv circuits com ng
out of Scott Substati on.

As we make our way flying east, we can see the
start of the structures that wll be the proposed 230kV
doubl e-circuit line that foll ow that existing flood
control channel. These are the five structures that are
bei ng proposed going in and tying into the 230kV/ 69kV
subst ati on.

So now we nove to the south, we can see those
exi sting 230kV lines to the north and south of the
boundary of the substation property.

We can see this 230kV pole that drops into the
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substation, followed by 230kV infrastructure which
i ncl udes 230 di sconnect swi tches, breakers, and nore
di sconnect switches.

Now as we're | ooking north, we can see the 230kV
transforners that are included in the CEC, followed by
the 69kV infrastructure to initially serve Mta.

Now as we're | ooking northwest into the
substation, we get a view -- a better view of Meta's own
cust oner substation that can show their transfornation
equi pnent as well as their switchgear that will be
ultimately fed into the data center.

Now | ooking directly west into the substation,

we can see SRP's routes for mai ntenance, the control

house, and sone indicative | andscaping that will be used
to screen the fencing around the -- the property
boundary.

As we nove now, we're | ooking south into it.

The control house is much nore visible as well as all the
230kV infrastructure that we had highlighted in green
previ ously.

And then now, as we rotate around, | ooking back
into east, we see that 230kV pole again, the |last drop
pole, as well as the 69kV circuits to the north and south
of the property.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman. Hell o?
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CHWN. KATZ: Hello.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Yes. | have just a quick
questi on.

Can you go back to your map real quick where you

were on the -- this area imedi ately -- | guess it would
be north. 1Is that 1-60 right there on the bottom of the
edge - -

MR WOOLFOLK: On the bottom that's Ellsworth
Road.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: That's El I sworth Road.

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yep.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Whiere is Ellsworth Road in
Apache Junction? |Is that to the east of this; is that
correct?

MR WOOLFOLK: That woul d be correct.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: All right. I1'mtrying to get
ny bearings here. Thank you.

MR WOOLFOLK: Yeah, yep. So we're basically --
it's Ellsworth in the forefront. And then to the left of
t he screen woul d be Warner Road. Wuld be Warner. And
then to the -- or, I"'msorry, Elliot. And then to the
south woul d be Warner. Apol ogi es.

So looking at this to the left would be Warner
and then, to the south, Elliot.

CHWN. KATZ: Gkay. That question was asked by
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Menmber Grinnell.
Go ahead, Counsel.
MEMBER GRI NNELL: Thank you.
Q BY MR ACKEN: Just to clarify that record for
the third tinme, Elliot is to the north and Warner is to

the south; is that correct?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) That's right. That's correct.
| have to get ny -- | have to get ny bearings straight.
Apol ogi es.

CHWN. KATZ: W can take, | guess, judicial
notice of that.

MEMBER PALMER: M. Chairnman, if | mght too.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Pal ner.

MEMBER PALMER: | wish to correct. Ellsworth
Road i s east of Power Road.

MR WOOLFOLK: Ch, it's east of Power. Ckay.
Thank you.

MR. ACKEN:. Thank you.

Q BY MR- ACKEN. Pl ease conti nue.
A (MR WOOLFOLK) So | think that brings us to the
concl usion of the virtual tour.

MR ACKEN: Before we nove forward, is there
anything that the Conmttee would |ike to see fromt hat
virtual tour again before we ...

Seei ng heads shaking no, | think we can nove
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forward

Q BY MR ACKEN. M. Wbholfolk, the next question
have for you regards reliability studi es conducted and
provided to Conm ssion Staff in support of this Project.
Can you descri be those, please.

A. (MR, WOOLFOLK)  Yes.

So SRP, in |late January of 2022, submtted a
Ten- Year Plan that included a power flow and stability
anal ysis report.

And then, nost recently, as part of a data
request fromthe ACC Staff, we supplied a Load | npact
Study that provided al so power flow stability as well as
short circuit anal ysis.

Q And, next, could you describe the Staff letter
As | nentioned earlier, it has -- it is shown on R25 but
has al so been included and nmarked for identification as
SRP No. 4.

A (MR WOOLFQOLK) Yep.

So on R25 is that letter show ng you the
response to the Chairnman's request for information.

Staff reviewed the project application and SRP' s
response, the data request, including the Load I npact
Study. And ACC Staff concluded that the proposed project
could inprove reliability, safety of the grid, and the
delivery of power in the state of Arizona.
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Q Thank you, M. Wol folk

We are actually going to shift nowto --

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: |Is this perhaps a tinme that |
coul d ask a question about the Staff letter?

CHWN. KATZ: You nmy ask that question now or
whenever you think appropriate.

MEMBER LI TTLE: The Staff indicated in that
letter that -- that interconnection of the project would
| ead to power flow overl oads and short circuit issues
wth the SRP transm ssion system

That -- that SRP stated that it is currently
eval uati ng options and cost responsibilities for
mtigating these issues and has indicated they w |l
mtigate the power flow overloads prior to project being
const ruct ed.

And | understand that it's certainly in the best
interest of SRP as well as everybody el se to make sure
that they do that before the project is constructed.

| s there any indication of when that will happen
or when it's expected to happen?

MR WOOLFOLK: | would have to defer to our
Transm ssi on Anal ysis and Pl anning Group. | don't have
t hose specifics.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022

MEMBER LI TTLE: Okay. Thank you.

MR. ACKEN. Ckay. Thank you.

For the next portion of our testinony, we're
going to switch over to environnental capability and the
envi ronnent al anal yses. And for that, ny co-counsel,

Ms. Glbert, will provide the direct exam nation of
Ms. Pollio.
MS. d LBERT: Thank you, M. Acken.

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON
MS. 4 LBERT:
Q Ms. Pollio, can you tell the Commttee what
environnental studies were perfornmed for this project.
A. (M5. POLLIO Yes.

So on R27, you can see a |ist of those studies

as well as where they are located in the CEC application.

We conpleted a | and use anal ysis, which is
i ncluded in Exhibit A

Bi ol ogi cal resources in Exhibits C and D

We studi ed and anal yzed as wel |l as conducted
simul ati ons for visual resources, which are included in
Exhi bit E.

We studied cultural resources, which are al so
part of Exhibit E.

Recreational resources in Exhibit F.
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We | ooked at pl anned area devel opnents and
existing plans in Exhibit H

As well as noise in Exhibit I.

Q Geat. Let's start with Exhibit A Can you
summari ze the relevant information, including the
transm ssion line route, | and ownership, jurisdiction,
and | and uses.

A (Ms. POLLIO Yes. Thank you.

| also will note -- | know we were al so just
tal ki ng about maps. This does kind of give a zoom out of
nore of the area of where we are. Probably a much | arger
scal e than we need, but we will have a nunber of maps in
this | and use area so you can get a sense of sone of the
addi ti onal detail.

But as M. Whol fol k has nentioned and as we' ve
been tal king about, we'll start with ownership. The |and
that the project is located on specifically, the Prickly
Pear Substation, is on private land. That land is al so
bei ng be used for the Meta Data Center.

The transm ssion line corridor we are requesting
is on State land. So right there, that is the | and
jurisdiction.

As M. Wol fol k nentioned, in Decenber 2021, SRP
secured a right-of-way for the 69kV line on State | and.
That al so provi des space for a 230kV transm ssion |ine.
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Accordingly, SRP is requesting a 300-foot-w de corridor.

I'll also note on -- for jurisdiction, you can
see on Exhibit -- or Slide R29, which is also Exhibit A1
in your CEC application, this also includes information
about jurisdictions in the area. So this is a 20-mle
radi us buffer that you can see around the project. You
can see predomnantly, it is private land in Msa,

Ari zona, and Maricopa County.

You can see State land in blue. And regionally,
you can see where there is tribal land in that brownish
color, and green is forest service | and. But, again,
that is on the outskirts of that 20-m | e radi us.

Q Coul d you al so provide sone information about

the existing | and uses.

A (M5. POLLIO Yes.
So I'I'l start with Exhibit R30. And this just
tal ks about where -- you know, who has jurisdiction over

those | and uses. And so this denotes in the |ight blue
what is Gty of Mesa jurisdiction. You can also see the
towns in the area, Gl bert, Queen Creek, and relative to
the City of Mesa jurisdiction.

You can also see State land in that nore
pur plish-blue color as well as you can see sonme white
parcels. Those are Maricopa County-owned parcels. So
those are Maricopa or county islands that we wll cal
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t hose.
So that basically gives you a sense of what
the -- the jurisdiction and who controls the |land use in
t he area.
Q Geat. And what about the existing | and uses

for the project area?
A. (MS. POLLIO Yes.

So R31 identifies the existing |and use for the
City of Mesa. This is also depicted on Figure A-4 in
your application.

You can see the land uses in the Gty of Msa.
These were actually field-verified, so these are the
actual on-the-ground | and uses here today.

You can see on the area around the proposed
Prickly Pear Substation is data center because that is
t he ongoing or active |land use that is being -- that is
occurring on that land. You can also see where the State
land is along the transm ssion |line corridor. And you
can also see the difference between the Gty of Mesa and
the Mari copa County parcels.

"Il note that the existing |land use for the

transmssion line on that State |l and i s vacant.

Q And just to clarify, there are existing | and
uses or linear features in this area, correct?

A (Ms. POLLIO There are. As we saw in the
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aerial virtual tour and | ooking at the maps that you' ve
seen, the proposed transm ssion line corridor is bounded
by the existing flood control channel on State | and.
There is also the 69kV line that would be to the south of
t hat corridor.

We al so have a nunber of different transm ssion
lines in the area. The 230kV Sout heast Power Link that
IS going to be under construction is in the area as wel |l
as nultiple other high-voltage lines that are running
east-west in the area.

Q All right. Let's spend sone tine with
di scussi ng the planned future | and uses in the project
ar ea.

A. (M5. POLLIO Yes.

So as you can see on R33, and this is also A-5,
this is the future land use for the Gty of Mesa.

And City of Mesa is regulated by their 2040
general plan. So that is the future | and use guide for
the City of Mesa.

You can see also here, which | think is
i mportant to note, the Elliot Road Technol ogy Corri dor.
That is a corridor that was developed in the Gty of
Mesa. It was created in 2014 to expedite entitl enent
process and attract high-technol ogy industries to Mesa.
It established site planning guidelines to ensure
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compliance with the City of Mesa's general plan.

The Elli ot Road Tech Corridor is about 1,000
acres. You can see it outlined here in that green and
white stripe. So this really dictates a | ot of the
future land use in the area, being that data center and
hi gh-tech corri dor

And this corridor was a draw and was very
desirable, as M. Wolfolk nentioned, for data centers
and these tech type of technologies to come into the City
of Mesa and in this | ocation.

So this denotes that corridor as well as you can
see the future | and use designated by the City of Mesa in
the area as enploynment, m xed-use conmmunity, m xed-use
enpl oynent .

So you can see the typical |and uses that are
bei ng devel oped and characterized by the Cty of Mesa.

Q And is the Meta Data Center included in the Gty
of Mesa's future plans?
A (M. POLLIO Yes, it is.

MEMBER HAMMY: | have a quick question.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER HAMMY: Yes. M. Pollio, when you're
tal ki ng about a data center as a land use, so it's got a
specific criteria of height and that sort of thing?

M5. POLLIO So the data -- the data center was
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approved by the City of Mesa. They went through a site
approval process as part of their -- or the data center's
approval process. They did provide us a site plan, and
that's how we devel oped those sinulations and the
renderings that you saw in the virtual tour and you'l

see.

And so I do not know all the criteria that they
had to nmeet in order to get that data center approved,
but I do know that there are criteria as part of the
Elliot Road Tech Corridor as well as those -- the | and
uses nandated by the 2040 general plan that do dictate
set backs, heights, and those type of things for those
| and uses.

MEMBER HAMMY: Ckay. Thank you.

Q BY M5. G LBERT: Can you review the existing
zoning within the project area.
A. (MB. POLLI O Yes.

So R34 is the existing zoning.

And you can also see R34 is reflective of A-6 in
your CEC application. These are the zoni ng designations,
and these are through the Gty of Mesa's zoning
or di nance.

"Il note that planned community is the zoning
designation for the data center and where the Prickly
Pear Substation is.
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You can see that light industrial is on the
State |l and, and that is what is -- or where the
transm ssion line corridor is located. And there is also
a nunber of different | and use designations in the area,
a lot of planned commnity and a |lot of different, again,
m xed use, industrial, and enpl oynent categori es.

Q And is the data center consistent with the
pl anned community desi gnati on?

A (Ms. POLLIO Yes, it is.

Q Thank you.

Were there any federal |ands associated with
this project that required a NEPA anal ysi s?

A (Ms. POLLIO No, there was not. There was no
federal funding and no federal |and that woul d have
triggered NEPA and, therefore, there are no docunents
associ ated with NEPA or NEPA studies included in the CEC
appl i cation.

Q Thank you.

And can you sunmari ze your | and use concl usi ons.

A. (MS. POLLIO Yes.

So, as we stated, the Prickly Pear Substation is
| ocated on private land in the Gty of Mesa. It's
currently under construction. It has an existing |and
use designation as data center. It has a future
desi gnation as planned conmunity. |'msorry, planned
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communi ty zoni ng.

The City of Mesa approved the data center in
March 24, 2021. It allows the devel opnent of this
commerci al and industrial canpus.

The proposed Prickly Pear Substation will not
conflict with any existing | and use or zoni ng

desi gnati ons based on those Mesa approval s.

The proposed transm ssion line will be |ocated
on State land. It's currently vacant. Has a vacant | and
use designation, light industrial designation.

It is bordered by a flood control channel to the
north, the 69kV transm ssion |line to the south. And,
therefore, the transm ssion line corridor is consistent
wth the future | and use and zoni ng desi gnati ons.

Q Geat. Let's turn to biological wealth and
nat ural resources.

Ms. Pollio, is this information included in
Exhibit Cto the application?

A (M. POLLIO Yes, it is. Exhibit C and
Exhi bit D actually both have bi ol ogi cal information.

Q Geat. Can you take us through the information
presented in Exhibit C and D.

A (MB. POLLIO Yes.

So in order to assess biological resources, we
consulted wiwth nmany different online tools and nany
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different analysis or field investigations to conplete
t he study.

First, we coordinated with Arizona Gane and Fi sh
Departnment as well as U. S. Fish and Wldlife Service
t hrough their online portals. W also | ooked at
t opographi cal, aerial, |and use, |and cover data and
el evati on dat a.

I ncluded in Exhibit G1is the U S. Fish and
Wldlife Service. That's their online |ist of species.
It's called Informati on for Pl anning and Consultation or
their | PaC system

Ari zona Gane and Fi sh Departnent al so has an
online tool. W reviewed that and obtai ned data and
coordinated with that agency. That is included in
Exhibit G2 and is also included in Table C 2 of your
appl i cation.

Al'l of this analysis gave us the potenti al
habitat and potential species that could occur within the
proj ect study area.

So in addition to the desktop anal ysis and
| ooking at this information, we al so did on-the-ground
field surveys. So in June and July of 2021,
on-the-ground field reconnai ssance surveys were conpl eted
of the substation and the project area. This was al
done in conjunction wth biol ogical assessnents that were
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conducted on the Meta Data Center property.

The conclusions of this study were that there --
or there was a preconstruction mgratory bird nesting
survey, western burrowi ng oW survey, all of which were
negative, and there were no nests found on the site.

I n January and March of 2022, a preconstruction
burrowng oWl and mgratory nest bird survey as well as
rare plant survey was conducted by SRP for the proposed
transm ssion line right-of-way. This was al so conducted
in consultation with Arizona State Land Departnent for
t heir application process.

Q And what were the results of that survey
conducted by SRP in 2022?

A (Ms. POLLIO So the results of the survey were
that there were no -- first no nests found. There was no
sensitive species or sensitive habitats found. There are
no designated or critical habitats associated with any of
t he project conponents.

The substation |ocation has historically been
di sturbed and devoid of npbst vegetation based on the
|l ong-termland uses in the area. There is m ninal
veget ati on along the proposed transm ssion |ine
right-of-way. |It's also disturbed in nature. |It's been
vacant and has had activity on it.

In general, in the area, as well as specific to
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t he project conponents, there are no wldlife corridors,
there are no wetl ands, no riparian areas, or inportant
bird areas | ocated within the project or within the

proj ect area.

There is also no suitable habitats for plants
that are protected by the Arizona Native Pl ant Law.

So based on the |limted habitat and di sturbed
nature of the area and the habitat on the ground for the
proj ect conponents, there would be negligible inpacts to
bi ol ogi cal resources.

Q Thank you, Ms. Pollio.

MEMBER HAMMY: | just have one qui ck question.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER HAMMY: So how | arge was your study
area? So when you're tal king about the study area,
you're tal king about the 20 mles, right? But when
you' re tal ki ng about specific studies done, you're just
tal ki ng about the acreage for the Meta site and for the
area use for the transm ssion |ine?

MS. POLLIG  That is an excellent question.

When we | ook at -- the statutory requirenent and
| and use does ask us to |l ook at that 20-mle radius. So
there is a statutory requirenent for |and use to go out
and to note that |and use.

And then we al so | ook at specifically 1,000 feet
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for all the project conponents that we go through with
the CEC application, a m nimum of 1,000 feet around, but
in general, so we will | ook at the project area.

But when we do on-the-ground field surveys,
specifically for biology or cultural, we are focused on
t he actual disturbance footprint. So that's when we boil
down to the project substation site itself and the
transm ssion line corridor. And that, you know, in
general , is because of access issues.

So when you' re doing on the ground, you have to
have access, you know, to the on-the-ground area. So
you're | ooking nore at the disturbance footprint. Wen
you're | ooking nore at the overall studies, you're going
to go out to | ook at potential inpacts. Again, that's
nore fromland use, visual, recreation-type inpacts.

MEMBER HAMAMAY:  Thank you.

Q BY M5. G LBERT: And just to clarify one thing,
Ms. Pollio, the historical uses, what were those, and can
you give a tine frame of when this property woul d have
been first been disturbed.

A (Ms. POLLIO So it has been disturbed. The
proving grounds are in the area, so, historically, this
has been an area where there have been a lot of -- a | ot
of activity, a |lot of disturbance.

So there's not -- you know, the native
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habitat and parts of -- obviously, Arizona there's a |ot
of native habitat, but this was disturbed by those
provi ng grounds.

And | do not know the exact date, but it was
years and years ago that this -- and historically and
through the years, this has had nore intensive active
uses in this area based on those, you know, proving
gr ounds.

Q Let's turn to the visual resources.

Ms. Pollio, in Exhibit E, SRP describes existing
scenic areas in the vicinity of the project. How are
sceni ¢ areas defi ned?

A (M5. POLLIO So scenic areas are defined as any
area of particular scenic beauty or historic significance
as determned by federal, state, or local officials
having jurisdiction in the area. It includes real
property interests that have been acquired for the
restoration, preservation, or enhancenent of scenic
beauty.

Q And are there any designated sceni c areas near

t he project?

A (Ms. POLLIO There are no designated scenic
ar eas.
Q So while there aren't any scenic areas, did SRP

consi der any sensitive viewoi nts?
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A (M. POLLIO Yes, we did.

So as part of the visual analysis included in
Exhibit E of the application, we do identify scenic
viewpoi nts. And these consist of |ocations where a
signi fi cant nunber or a nunber of people can see the
project. It's that sinple.

But we ook at it fromspecific |ocations. So
we try to look at it fromthe cl osest sensitive
receptors, which would be a residence or any type of
sensitive -- other type of facility. GCenerally, that
woul d be a nedical facility, a church, a school,
recreational uses, those type of things, as well as
transportation corridor. So if you are driving by and
you woul d see the project.

So we try to capture and sinmul ate the project
fromthose key | ocations.

Q Can you summari ze the potential sensitive
vi ewpoi nts anal yzed for this Project.
A. (M5. POLLIO Yes.

As you can see from L38 and R38, we have
identified where we identify what we call key observation
points. So these are these sensitive viewpoints that we
wll then take a photo of and sinulate the project.

So I'I'l start with No. 1. So No. 1 is |ocated
on Elliot Road and El |l sworth Road. And you can see that
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by the red point and the arrow that points to the south,
so that's the view of the project. And that is fromthe
Dignity Health Mesa Hospital nedical facility. So that
is what you see right that under that No. 1. So that's
the cl osest sensitive receptor that's not a residence in
the area. So we wanted to take one fromthat | ocation

No. 2 is actually the closest residence to the
project. That is part of the Eastmark community. So you
can see that up where No. 2 is kind of | ooking towards
the west. And that is up -- again, that is the farthest
or the closest residence in that Eastnark residential
communi ty.

And you can see fromthe aerial photograph al
of those houses | ooking -- what is that -- to the
sout heast of the map. Those are all part of Eastnark.

So | just want to nake sure everyone is kind of aware of
what that area is call ed.

No. 3 is fromthe closest recreational facility
and school. So that is a recreation -- you can see sone
ball fields underneath there. So that is the closest
recreation facility to the project. So we wanted to take
one fromthat | ocation.

| can tell you that there have been sone interim
devel opnent fromthe tine the aerial was taken where you
see sone of these roads that have been identified or
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platted. That is being filled in right now So you w |
see that here in a mnute.

And then No. 4 is taken from Loop 202. So,
obviously, that's a highly traveled corridor. So we
wanted to take it fromthat | ocation just because of how

many people would potentially see the site fromthat

hi ghway.
Q Geat. Let's |ook through the sinmulations now.
A (Ms. POLLIO (Okay. KOP No. 1. So, again, L39

shows where the point is. R39 shows the existing photo
and t he proposed.

So this is East Elliot Road and South Ell sworth
| ooki ng south. You can see the existing road. You can
see the Elliot Road sign in the foreground. You can see
t he construction fencing around Meta's data facility in
the m ddl e and background. And you can see kind of the
vacant nature of the parcel right now As we talked, it
I's under construction.

The proposed view sinulates the proposed data
center and the substation and transm ssion |line. You can
see the Meta Data Center buildings. You can see the
substation in the background that's being pointed to by
the green arrow as well as the transmission line that's
crossing over Ellsworth east to west into that sinulated
transm ssion |ine pole.
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KOP No. 2 is what we tal ked about previously,
the cl osest residence in Eastnmark community. This is at
the north end of South Eastnmark Parkway | ooking
northwest. So the existing view, you can see the
construction, red and white fencing around the perineter
of the site.

I n the proposed view, you can see that as
down -- that is no |longer there. W have sinmulated from
t he approved Mesa -- the Meta Data Center's Mesa site
plan or the site plan that was approved by the Gty of
Mesa. | apologize. That's a |lot of words, but 1'Il get
it right. So it is fromthe approved site plan.

And you can see the fencing in the mddle
ground, the data center in the background. You can see
t he substation structures. And then the transm ssion
line would be off in the distant background.

MEMBER HAMMY: So, real quick, ny crude use of
the key puts the closest resident at about 2,000 feet.

M5. POLLIO You're --

MEMBER HAMMY: |s that what you determ ned?

M5. POLLIO You're about 50 feet off, but, yes,
that's very good.

MEMBER HAMAMAY:  Ckay.

M5. POLLIO It's about 1950 feet, so that's
very good.
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A (M. POLLIO Ckay. KOP No. 3, Inspirian
Par kway and East Point Twenty-Two Boul evard, and this is
| ooki ng northwest. This is the one fromthe cl osest
recreational facility. There's also a school in this
| ocation. So, again, we also want to show where that is.

You can see the devel opnent that is kind of
filled inin that area that -- on the aerial photo that
Is vacant. And you can see the transm ssion structures
and substation in the way background, but it's very hard
to see in this -- in this photo.

But, again, we did want to sinulate what it
woul d 1 ook I'ike fromthat cl osest school and recreational
facility.

The last KOP is No. 4, and this is Highway 24 to
t he Loop 202 ranp. It's | ooking northeast.

So here, in the existing photo, you can see,

agai n, vacant State |land. You can see off in the

di stance the data center parcel. So, again, it |ooks --
it's very vacant except you can see -- if you renenber in
the last -- I"'mgoing to go two back -- there is a

tenporary facility in the existing view here.
M5. POLLIO Courtney, can you show that? Yeah,
that right there.
A (Ms. POLLIO That -- you can see this kind of
gi ves you a good angle on the next one, so you can see
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that also in the existing view. So that kind of gives
you a perspective of where we are.

And then the proposed view shows the sinulated

64

Sout heast Power Link, so we wanted to show t hat Sout heast

Power Li nk. It's not there, but it will be there, as
well as the 69kV power line, as well as the sinulated
data center, the sinulated substation, and the 230kV

transm ssion line that is going to be running east to

west .
Q And are there any --
M5. G LBERT: |If you go back one slide.
Q BY M. G LBERT: Are there any future planned

| and uses for this vacant State | and?
A (Ms. POLLIO There is. This is part of a
pl anned area devel opnent. And, again, the zoning
desi gnati on underneath where the transm ssion corridor
is light industrial. And there are sone pl anned | and
uses for the PADs, which we wll cover in Exhibit H as
wel | .
Q Ckay. Thank you
Can you summari ze your conclusions for this
section on the visual inpacts.
A (MB. POLLIO Yes.
So as you could see by all of the photos, the
area does have a | ot of devel opnent going on. W
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obviously -- we have a | ot of planned uses, the Elli ot
Road Tech Corridor. The data center is being built. W
have a nunber of different transm ssion |lines being
built, the Southeast Power Link, the 69kV line. You've
got the flood control channel. So you have a | ot going
on.

And this is serving the data center and is
consistent with the | and use and zoning. So from a
vi sual perspective, you will see nore structures in the
area, but they are consistent with the structures and the
nat ure of devel opnment that is occurring.

Q Geat. Let's turn to cultural resources.

So Exhibit E to the application requires SRP to
give us information on historic and archeol ogi cal sites.
Can we go through that analysis, Ms. Pollio.

A (M5. POLLIO Yes.

So nost of the project has been previously
subject to a Cass Ill cultural survey. And the
Class Ill is a pedestrian survey.

So as part of the Arizona State | and
ri ght-of-way application process, a Cass IlIl pedestrian
survey did have to occur and was part of that approva
process. That is included in Exhibit E-1.

For the substation site, there was a C ass |
records review of the entire substation site as well as
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the overall data center parcel. That has been previously
surveyed by Cass Ill surveys in the area. So both
the -- and that is cunulatively considered a d ass |

because it takes all of the desktop review and puts them
i nto one study.

So based on both that dass | and the Cass III,
it was determ ned that there are no archeol ogi cal sites
or historic building or structures that are along the
transm ssion |line corridor or the substation property.

We al so sent both the Cass | and dass IIl to
the affiliated tribes in the area. Those tribal letters
and the responses that we have received to date are
included in Exhibit E-2.

Q And can you just briefly summarize the nature of
t hose responses.
A (Ms. POLLIO  Yes.

So those responses that have been received
basically just identified that they would |i ke to be
continually inforned about the project, but they had no
concern because there were no cultural sites or resources
on either -- on any of the project conponents.

Q Thank you.

And can you summari ze your concl usions.

A. (Ms. POLLIO  Yes.
Based on the CQass | and Cass IIl, as well as
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535

www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 67

I nput received fromthe tribes, there is a finding of no
historic properties affected or no historical resources
or -- known cultural resources that would be affected by
t he project.

Q Ckay. Mwving forward with recreational areas.

So Exhibit F requires SRP to state whether the

proposed site or route will be available to the public
for recreational purposes. |Is that correct, Ms. Pollio?
A (Ms. POLLIO That is correct.
Q And so can you pl ease cover that information for

the Committee.

A (M5. POLLIO Yes. Recreational uses in the
area are m xed uses, open space active. And the nmpjority
of the recreational areas in close proximty to the
proj ect are passive open spaces or nei ghborhood parks
associ ated with the subdivision. That would include
cat chnent basi ns and common ar eas.

You can see on R47 we have both a 1-mle buffer
as well as in a 1,000-foot buffer. No recreational
facilities at all within that 1,000 feet. And, again,
wthin the 1-mle buffer, you can see the green open
space. And again, those are generally catchnment basins

or open green space associ ated wi th subdi vi si ons.

Q Let's take a ook at Figure F-1. |Is that on
RAT7?
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535

www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 68

A (M. POLLIO Correct, yes.

Q So your -- those open spaces, the green spaces,
t hose are available to the Eastmark community and ot her
resi dents?

A (Ms. POLLIO Correct.

Q G eat .

So can you summari ze your concl usions.

A. (M5. POLLIO Yes.

Based on the limted recreation in the 1-mle
buffer and no recreation within the 1, 000-foot buffer of
the project, there would be no inpacts to existing
recreational facilities.

The site is not available for public
recreational use, but it would -- woul d not preclude
recreational uses within the project. And, therefore,
there are no inpacts to recreation.

Q Thank you.

So, next, we'll | ook at the existing plans of
state, | ocal governnent, and private entities.

Ms. Pollio, the last -- this is our |ast
environnental topic. Can you sumrarize the existing
pl ans for the Commttee.

A. (MB. POLLIO Yes.

So you can see on Figure H 1, which is also R49,

there are a | ot of planned area devel opnents. The orange
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represents planned area devel opnents in the area. So you
can see -- |'ll just summarize. In the 1-mle buffer,
there are 21 pl anned area devel opnents.

W'l start with the nost obvious. The pl anned
area devel opnent that is where the substation is | ocated
is obvious. That is the approved Meta Mesa data center.
So that is No. 15. Qbviously, the substation is
provi di ng power to that planned area devel opnent and t hat
data center, and so the land use is conpatible and is
consistent with the plan and the future plans of that
pr oj ect .

There are also, as | nentioned, the 21 other
PADs in the area, and they are a m x of being planned,
they're being planned, they're being permtted, or in
construction. So they are all over the place in terns of
where they are.

We do have a table, Table H 1, in your
application that gives nore information about each one of
t hose pl anned area devel opnents within the 1-mle buffer.

But I'll note where the transmssion line is we
were tal king about that earlier, and that's No. 2. That
is called Hawes Crossing. That is also a planned area
devel opnent. It's very | arge.

As you can see, Courtney is identifying that
boundary of No. 2. It is a very, very large PAD. 1"l
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focus on, though, the portion of the PAD that is on State
land. So the State land is also part of the PAD, and the
transm ssion line corridor is part of that as well.
However, as you -- we tal ked about, we've gone
t hrough a process with the State Land Departnent for
| ocation of the 69 |line and the corridor for the 230kV
line and how that is conpatible wth that Hawes Crossi ng.
And as | nentioned earlier, Hawes Crossing, the zoning
for the transm ssion line corridor is industrial, and it
is a mxed use. And so this area is conpatible and m xed
use i s conpatible with the planned area devel opnment of
Hawes Cr ossi ng.

Q Are there any ot her planned devel opnents in the
area you'd like to note?

A (Ms. POLLIO Yeah. The only one | would |ike
to nmention again because | do think it's inportant, even
t hough we did talk about it in land use, is the ElIli ot
Road Tech Corridor. Again, | won't go into details
again, but it is outlined in the green and the white. It
iIs an inmportant corridor, and it really has been integral
in the planning aspects of the project.

Lastly, I will talk about road inprovenents.
There are a couple different road i nprovenents that are
going on in the area, and so we want to note that, and
t hose have been described in Exhibit H One is the
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Phase 2 section of State Route 24 that is under
construction as well as the Gty of Mesa is currently
wor ki ng on Signal Butte Road to WIllians Field Road to
Ger mann Road i nprovenent project. So those are a couple
of road inprovenent projects in the area, none of which
are in conflict and, therefore, are conpatible wth our
pr oj ect .

Q All right. So can you summarize your
concl usions regarding the existing plans in this area.

A (M5. POLLIO Yes.

So, as we've nentioned, Prickly Pear Substation
Is on the data center planned area developnent. It's
serving the data center and, therefore, is consistent
w th that area pl an.

The transmission |ine runs through Hawes
Crossing PAD. That portion is a conbination of m xed use
and light industrial uses. It has al so been coordi nated
wth State Land Depart nment.

So based on the coordination with those pl anned
area devel opnents and the underlying | andowner, those
area pl ans woul d be considered conpati bl e and, therefore,
not in conflict with any planned area devel opnents.

Q G eat .

Let's turn to noi se and communi cations. This is

covered by Exhibit I, correct?
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A (Ms. POLLIO Correct.
Q Can you summari ze the findings.
A (Ms. POLLIO  Yes.

So very simlar to a lot of other projects that
you' ve seen for transm ssion |ines and substation
facility, there are different types of potential noise
that are emtted by these facilities. One,
construction-rel ated noise, which is tenporary and short
term There is al so operational noise associated wth
substation and transm ssion lines generally characterized
as a low hum However, with the cl osest residents being
about 2,000 feet away fromthe substation, and the
transmssion line is even further, as well as no
addi ti onal sensitive noise receptors being very cl ose.

In addition, there is a lot of active -- a |ot
of activity going on on the data center. So the noise
fromthe transmi ssion |ine or the substation would be
barely noticeable fromany type of residence or any type
of -- anyone that woul d be cl ose by.

Q And do you anticipate any radio interference
fromthis project?

A (M5, POLLIO No. Wth all the activity in the
area, there would be no anticipated interference with
conmmuni cation facilities.

Q G eat .
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| believe you can go through your environnental
concl usi ons now.

A (M5. POLLIO So as |I've stated -- 1'll just go
t hrough this quickly, but there are no significant or
detrinental effects to | and uses or jurisdictions.

There are no detrinental effects to fish,
wildlife, plant Iife, or associated forns.

There's no significant effects to existing
scenic areas, historic sites, or archeol ogi cal resources.

Nei t her SRP nor jurisdictional agencies have
pl ans or future devel opnents for recreation facilities.

There are no significant or detrinental effects
to pl anned area devel opnments or area pl ans.

No detrinental effects from noise or
conmuni cati on signal s.

The project inplenentation would be consi st ent
and safely -- we considered regulations in the area. And
the project is environnmentally conpatible with the total
environnent of the area.

Q So in addition to environnental conpatibility,
you al so covered statutory notice requirenents?
A (Ms. POLLIO That is correct.

CHWN. KATZ: Before we do that, | think that
we' ve been going a little bit nore than an hour and a
hal f or just about that long. | want to take a 15-m nute
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br eak.

It's about 20 mnutes to 3, a couple m nutes
past that. 1'd like to get started between five to 3 and
3:00. So we'll take a short recess, and then we'l|
conti nue.

(A recess was taken from2:41 p.m to
3:06 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: Wenever you're ready, M. Acken,
you may continue with | believe our current wtness,

Ms. Pollio, or whonever.

Q BY M. G LBERT: M. Pollio, let's --

CHWN. KATZ: Oh, I'msorry. It was Ms. G| bert.
Go ahead.

M5. G LBERT: No worries.

Q BY M5. G LBERT: Can you continue with the
statutory notice requirenents.

A (Ms. POLLIO Yes. So as we entered into
recess, we were tal king about statutory notice. And the
first one is the Notice of Hearing. So on R55, you can
see a copy of the Notice of Hearing.

R56 identifies the two publications that we
advertise with the Notice of Hearing. That was the Mesa
Tri bune and The Arizona Republic. So these represent the
affidavits of publications for both of those papers.

Finally, we sent mailings to the affected
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jurisdictions. And as we discussed earlier on the record
this norning, it was to Maricopa County, Cty of Mesa,
and the State Land Departnent.

Q Thank you.

And there are a few Procedural O der
requi rements. Can you detail those for the Commttee.

A. (MS. POLLIO Yes.

So the first ones are signs. So we did post the
| arge signs around the perimeter of the project area.

You can see on R58, there are five | ocations where we
posted those signs.

I n addition, we delivered copies of the CEC
application to libraries within the Gty of Mesa. Those
i ncl uded t he Sout heast Regional Library and the Red
Mount ai n Branch Library.

Q | think that concludes your testinony on the
envi ronnental , statutory, Procedural Order notice
requi rements, noise, and conmunications; is that correct?
A (Ms. POLLIO That is correct. Thank you.

MS. G LBERT: So, next, M. Acken and Ms. Horgen

wll review direct testinony on public outreach.

MR ACKEN. Thank you, Ms. G| bert.

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 76

DI RECT EXAM NATI ON ( Cont .)
BY MR ACKEN
Q And hell o again, Ms. Horgen. Thank you for your
pati ence.

Let's start off by having you describe for the
Comm ttee how you determ ned the notification area for
publ i c outreach.

A (M. HORGEN) Sure.

So the right screen, R61, is identifying the
notification area that we determ ned for public outreach
for Project Huckleberry. And the notification is our --
an inportant step in our public process. It's our first
step in our public process.

And in determning that notification area, we
carefully considered who nay have an interest in the
project and based it based on the project routes or
conponents of the project.

So, generally, we start with a 1-mle
notification, and then we | ook at the HOAs in the area,
maki ng sure that we don't cut or bisect a community. W
al so ook at linear features such as major streets to
find a natural boundary cutoff.

And so in this approach, we don't want to
I nundat e fol ks who would not be interested or be close
enough to the inpact of the project to receive nailers
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that, you know, could potentially not be of interest to
t hem

So based on that approach, we did choose a
notification area that was approximately 1.4 mles from
t he substation and the transm ssion line. And in sone
cases, the notification area, which I wll -- if | can --
| don't knowif | can --

MS. HORGEN:. O, Courtney, can you do that for

nme.
A (M5. HORGEN) She will identify what the

notification boundary is. It is teal. And so you can

see this is the current notification area. It does

expand up to 2.5 mles to the bottom And that was in
order to avoid cutting or bisecting the Eastnmark HOA
communi ty.

So we went as far east to Signal Butte, and we
went as far west to Sossaman Road, as far north to
Guadal upe, and as far south to Wllianms Field Road. And
this is the notification area that we did use for all of
our public outreach.

As you can see on the left side, this is a
summary of our outreach canpai gn

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne ask, M. Acken, throughout
this, we've been looking at slides in Exhibit 2, but sone
of these slides are | abeled L61, for exanple here, or
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R61. What does the L stand for and what does the R stand
for?

MR ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairman. | should
have expl ai ned that fromthe outset.

CHWN. KATZ: |I'mnot confused. | just think we
need a good record.

MR. ACKEN:. Yeah, exactly.

So this is -- the slide deck is marked for
identification as SRP No. 2. These are the hearing
slides that we're using for all of our w tnesses.

L refers to left-hand screen. R refers to the
ri ght-hand screen. So for those in the room those
wat ching virtually, and those reading the transcri pt
later, |1'm hopeful that will nake it easier to follow
that the L61 corresponds to R61 and so on and so forth.

CHWN. KATZ: And, generally, |1've seen on the
|l eft screen a summary, for exanple, of outreach canpaign
and then an actual map that shows the area that was
consi dered appropriate to notify.

MR ACKEN. Yes, M. Chairman. Wth |limted
exceptions, nost of the text slides are on the | eft-hand
side and the visuals and the maps and other things are on
t he right-hand side.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine. Feel free to proceed.

Q BY MR ACKEN. M. Horgen, next I'd like you to
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provide a summary of your outreach canpaign that is shown
on L61.
A (M5. HORGEN) Sure.

So the Slide L61 shows the variety of nethods we
used to publicize this project. So the goal here is to
make sure that we provide information about the project,
assisting in the understandi ng of the project,
encour agi ng engagenent, and al so just to pronote our
website that we're continuing regularly to update with
t he | at est devel opnents.

And so you can see here we started -- or simlar
met hods of outreach or stakehol der outreach in general.
And I'lIl go through that in -- nore specifically.
Jurisdictional briefings; postcards; project website;
soci al nedia canpaign; multiple news rel eases; open
house, both in person and virtual; a tel ephone
information line; public comments; and custoner and
st akehol der enail s.

Q Let's start wth stakehol der outreach and
jurisdictional briefings. Describe those for the
Commi ttee.

A (M5. HORGEN) Sure.

So just to start the -- our initial outreach
began reachi ng out to HOAs, schools, churches, and ot her
st akehol ders within the notification area. W called
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themactually prior to our public |launch in February just
to verify that we had correct infornati on because we
wanted to use that information, emails and phone nunbers,
to eventually send out an eblast with each correspondi ng
public outreach event. And so we did gather in February
emai |l s, phone nunbers, property managers, or any
appropriate contact for those stakehol ders.

So you can see here we have HOAs, daycares,
school s, churches, and al so the hospital, which was
| ocated -- which is considered the nedical facility.

And then we have Arizona State Land Departnent,
Ari zona Corporation Comm ssion, Cty of Mesa, Maricopa
County supervi sor, Mesa Chanber of Comrerce. And then
Apache Junction Chanmber of Commerce, we did notify them
as a courtesy.

And to the right on R62, this is a stakehol der
map. And to the right of the | egend, you can see that
those -- that actually identifies all of the different
stakehol ders in the area. So we had approxinately 27
briefings on this project.

Q Next, describe the postcard mailings that were
used to announce the project and publicize open houses
and this hearing.

A (M. HORGEN) Sure.

So we had four postcard mailings. March 4th was
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for the -- to notify the announcenent of the project and
also the live virtual open house. On April 14th, there
was an i n-person open house. And on June 3rd, we had the
Noti ce of Hearing, which noticed for here today.

And then, as M. Acken referenced earlier in his
openi ng, the next notice was sent out to reference the
public coment typo. And so on the R63 is a sanple of
Postcard No. 1.

And then Postcard No. 2 is R64.

R65 is Postcard No. 3.

And R66 is the fourth postcard.

We al so used this postcard information to share
via email as well as our social nedia canpaign. And the

average nunber of nmmilings we had on our postcards was

13, 000.

Q What i nfornation was avail able on the project's
websi t e?

A (M5. HORGEN) So here on L67 shows a nunber of

itenms that we posted to our website. W had project

i nformation, benefit and need, the public process for
each of themthat we were holding. A map, a nunber of
maps, Vi deos, scope of the project, infrastructure
depictions, a comment form a tel ephone information line,
and we al so posted the filed docunents and transcripts
fromthe CEC
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So R67 is identifying what a sanple of the
website would ook Iike. And | would |like to point out I
did add a couple stats here. Just thought that would be
interesting for you.

So from March 4th is the public |aunch, and we
pul l ed these stats June 9th. So unique visitors to the
website was 2,579. Unique visitors is the nunber of
people that actually went to our page. So, for exampl e,
if you went on your conputer and you went on your phone,
t hat woul d be considered two uni que visits.

And then page views was 6, 238. And page views
Is the nunber of hits to the page. And so that could be
multiple hits if you went to public outreach. |If you
went to the project need and benefit or contacts page,
that would be nmultiple hits.

MEMBER HAMMY: | just have a qui ck questi on.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER HAMMY: \What happens at the virtual open
house and the live, i1In-person open house?

MS5. HORGEN:. So the live, in-person open house,
we had presenters -- we hosted two live virtual open
houses here March 22nd and 23rd.

For the virtual open house, we had the project
manager, Kevin, and Kenda and nyself on so that we could
talk to people and al so present sone information and al so

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 83

answer questions fromthe public.

On March 22nd, we had 14 attendees and 17
questions. And then we al so had topics that surrounded
under groundi ng and vi sual i npacts.

On March 23rd, we had five attendees and four
questions, and the substation and |linear residential
was -- or the substation and the transm ssion line in
particul ar were discussed as far as how close they are to
residential areas as well as visual inpacts.

And the in-person open house was May 3rd. That
one we hosted in particular at Eastmark. W thought that
they were the closest to the project, so it was
appropriate to try to capture as many as those fol ks as
we could too. And so we did have that at the Eastnark
Visitor and Community Center.

There were 11 attendees, and there were no
witten comments to SRP. W did have sone coment forms
there and offered to give to themif they wanted to mail
themor give themto us, but we have not received those
witten conments.

The topics that cane up at that open house were
EMF, reliability, visual inpacts, undergrounding. And we
al so did have a representative fromthe Mesa | ndependent
who attended our open house and, in fact, wote this
article to the right on our project, and it was posted on
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May 5t h.

Q BY MR. ACKEN. Describe your enmil outreach to
custoners and ot her stakehol ders.

A (M5. HORGEN) So we did both custoner and
st akehol der enuil s.

We had -- all the custoner and stakehol der
emails did correspond wth when the postcard went out.

So on March 7th, we had 7,995 enmails that were delivered.
And on April 18th, we had 10,089 emails delivered,;

June 13th, 9,885 ennils are delivered. And on June 13t h,
we had 9,886 ennils delivered on the correction.

And so for emails, we did pull those ennails
using -- for custoners, we pulled themusing the emails
in the notification area. So any enmils that we pulled
fromour custoner list, we tried to use those for emil
out r each.

St akehol ders, | nentioned this earlier, we did
pul | stakehol der enails and contact information early on
prior to our public |launch, and that was wth proactive
calls by nyself.

And so on the right side you can see a sanple.
R69 i s custoner and stakehol der email sanpl e.

VEMBER HAMAAY: So the ennils, those were within
the 1-mle or the 20-m | e?

MS. HORGEN:. No, they were -- the emails were
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pulled -- we pulled themusing the identification area.
So anything within that notification area based on --

MEMBER HAMMY: How big was the notification

area?
M5. HORGEN: 1.4 to 2.5.
MEMBER HAMMY: Al right.
Q BY MR ACKEN. And that is shown on R61
correct?
A (M5. HORGEN) Correct.
Q How di d you use social nedia to informthe

public of the project and opportunities to participate?

A (M5. HORGEN) So L70 is identifying our soci al
medi a canpai gn. So our social nedia canpaign started two
weeks prior to any outreach event wth the excepti on of
this hearing today. W did notify for three weeks.

And so each nedi a canpai gn, again, corresponded
with our postcard release. And we did target both
Facebook and I nstagram both Spani sh and English. And
Next door, we could only use English, so that was only
English there.

But for the Nextdoor canpaign, unfortunately,

t hey don't have the option of pulling for the
notification area. So what we did is we pulled -- using
ZI P codes, pulled themall -- all the ZI P codes off of
our mailing list. So we actually a little bit farther
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reach, but that was okay. W felt it was fine to just
extend beyond the notification in this case. So that was
usi ng ZI P codes for Nextdoor.
On the R70, you can see a sanple of our soci al
medi a ads.
Q How many peopl e actually clicked on the soci al

nmedia ads to | earn nore about the project?

A (M5. HORGEN) So as far as clicks -- so we call
it -- there's a CTA. So on the very bottom of the screen
on the social nedia ads, you see a "learn nore." So CTA

means call to action, what we wanted the conmmunity to do.
So in this case, we called it the "learn nore" button.
So in March, the total nunber for clicks for
Next door, Facebook, and | nstagramwas 978. For the My
open house social nedia ad canpai gn, there was 258. And
for the June hearing, we did pull it alittle bit early,
so we pulled it on June 22nd.
So the canpaign, it was still ongoing until
today. So it didn't fully capture everybody, but it
was -- at the tine we pulled it on 6/22, it was 382.
Q And did you also prepare news releases to i nform
t he public?
A (M5, HORGEN) We did. We did prepare four news
rel eases.
And you can see on L71, we had them again
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correspond wth the postcard rel ease, so we had one for
t he project announcenent and notifying of the online open
house. W had one prior to the in-person open house,
prior to the line siting here today, and then again the
heari ng public comrent news rel ease was re-sent on the
sane exact day for the correction.

And to the right, I think -- | believe Kenda
spoke to this earlier in her testinony, but those are the

dates of when the ads were placed in the newspaper.

Q And exanpl es of the news rel eases are shown on
R71?
A (M5. HORGEN) Yes. On the right side, R71, are

exanpl es of the news rel eases.
Q VWhat | etters of support have you received for
t he project?
A (M5. HORGEN) So we received letter support from
the City of Mesa as well as the Mesa Chanber of Commerce.
As far as Gty of Mesa, they're stating that:
"It wll benefit Mesa greatly by bringing in strong
revenue, quality jobs, and attract future economc
devel opnent in a location that is ideal for high-tech
manuf acturers and data centers.”
According to the Mesa Chanber of Commerce
letter: "The devel opnent represents a continuation of
t echnol ogy sector growth in Arizona, especially data
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center growh for which the Phoeni x area recently ranked
second nationally."

And note -- I'mjust going to note too that the
devel opnent in this -- since you guys don't have the ful
option of -- well, maybe you do since you can see, but
it's referencing the data center. "Devel opnent” is
referencing the data center.

Q And, Ms. Horgen, both of those support letters
have been marked for identification as SRP Exhibit 5 if
the Commttee would like to look at the full letters; is
t hat correct?

A (MB. HORCGEN) Yes.

Q And t hen --

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. Ginnell, go ahead.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: CQutreach. Has there been any
comrent s about the amount of water use being utilized by
the data centers, whatever you want to call them these
comput er pl aces?

M5. HORGEN: Yes. | think I'll et Kevin answer
t hat .

MR WOOLFOLK: Yeah, so | -- so | can answer
t hat .

So Meta or Facebook has worked out with the Gty
of Mesa, but they have enpl oyed technol ogies at their
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data center that would nake their center use 60 percent
| ess water than typical data centers with their hybrid
cool i ng technol ogi es.

They al so have a nunber of water restoration
efforts to supply nore water back into the Col orado R ver
than they woul d consunme at their data center.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Forgive ne. They woul d what
now? Put nore water back into the CAP?

MR WOOLFOLK: Yeah. They have a nunber of
wat er restoration projects that would actually restore
nore water into the Col orado R ver than they consune.
And it's roughly 200 mllion gallons per year that they
wll be restoring in these efforts.

MEMBER HAMMY: |s this a transfer of water?
How are they returning nore water than they use?

MR WOOLFOLK: [I'mnot sure I'mthat famli ar
with the specifics of their water restoration efforts. |
woul d have to defer to sonmeone with that know edge.

MEMBER FRENCH: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, M. French.

MEMBER FRENCH: Coul d you just give us the tota
consunption of water that this facility would be using
annual ly? | understand that it's not within the
jurisdiction, but just for our informational purposes.

MR WOOLFOLK: Unfortunately, | don't have that
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figure either.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Has there been any --
M. Chair man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Has there been any questi ons
by DW\R or the CAP or -- regarding this facility?

MS. HORGEN: Is that a question for ne? Sorry.
| have not received any coments.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Whoever can answer it or if
you can find any. |I'mjust trying to -- I'mjust trying
to get a -- wap ny head around sone of this because,
obviously, water is a big issue, and these centers are
i mportant, and they need a lot of cooling. So | amjust
curious, has there been any outreach or inquiries by DWR
or the CAP board regarding this project?

M5. HORGEN: Like I say, | have not received any
inquiries fromeither of those.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Thank you. Thank you.

Q BY MR ACKEN. Wiile we're on the topic of
water, I'mgoing to go back to you, M. WolfolKk.
Are you famliar with I'll refer to it as a fact

sheet that Meta devel oped di scussing their water use and

how t hey're going to conserve water?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes.
Q And so there have been questi ons about how
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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exactly are they going to conserve water. |Is it true
that one way that they do so is to recycle the water
several tinmes before discharge?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) That is correct.

Q And is it true that they're using kind of a
hybri d cooling systenf

A. (MR, WOOLFOLK)  Yes.

Q And then with respect to the water restoration
projects that will nore than offset their water usage,
are you famliar with -- one project is with the Col orado

Ri ver Indian Tribes and the Arizona Departnent of Water
Resour ces?
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. That was listed on the

fact sheet.

Q And the volune restored per year is estinated to
be 25.5 mllion gallons per year starting in 20217

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yep, that's correct.

Q And the other project, they're partnering with

the Nature Conservancy and the Mason Lane Ditch
Associ ation; is that correct?

A. (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes.

Q And do you know what the vol unme of water

restored per year they anticipate for that project?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. For the Mason Lane, they
roughly estimate 180 mllion gallons per year starting in
GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
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2022.
Q That was 180 mllion gallons annually?
A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. Correct.
Q And a third project is the Navajo Nation Wter

Supply partnering with the Navajo conmunity partners?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Correct.

Q And what is the volunme restored per year under
that project?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) 302,400 gall ons per year.

Q Ckay. Thank you

MEMBER HAMMY: |s that fact sheet in evidence?

MR, ACKEN: It will be.

MEMBER HAMMY:  Ckay.

MR ACKEN: We will mark that for identification
as SRP No. 6.

CHWN. KATZ: Thank you.

Q BY MR ACKEN: M. Horgen, another question for
you on exhibits. SRP No. 3 is an updated summary of
public outreach efforts prepared pursuant to the
Procedural Order; is that correct?

A (M5. HORGEN) Yes.

Q And it's consistent with your testinony here

today; is that correct?

A (M5. HORCGEN) Yes.
Q | want to close out your testinony, M. Horgen
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You' ve tal ked about the different types of outreach that
SRP perforned for Project Huckleberry. Wat are your

overal | concl usions regardi ng the public outreach

canpai gn?
A (M5. HORGEN) So SRP takes great pride, | can
say this personally, what |I've seen -- what | do and what

|'ve seen in SRP general, we take great pride in our
outreach naking sure that we're reaching out to our
custoners and st akehol ders because we don't want to catch
t hem of f guard. W want to nake sure they're getting

i nformati on about the projects that are in their

communi ty.

And so |I'm confident that SRP can -- conducted a
robust public outreach canpaign for this project using
the variety of canpaign nethods |isted above. So we did
all these stakehol der outreach, the jurisdictional
briefings, the postcards, the project website, the social
media, and | think you guys can read the rest.

But we've al so worked with Eastnmark, and they
were close in proximty -- closest in proximty to the
project to have the open house at their facility. So |
do feel confident that our outreach canpai gn was
effective and it provided project information and ways
for the public to engage in our project. And it resulted
in mnimal concern and m nimal opposition for the
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pr oj ect .
Q BY MR ACKEN:. Thank you, Ms. Horgen
M. Wolfolk, I want to come back to you to kind
of cl ose the panel.
First, there is a couple itens that we wanted to
cl ose the | oop on.
MR, ACKEN. If we could pull up Slide RS,
pl ease, Courtney. Thank you.
Q BY MR ACKEN: | believe Chairman Katz asked you
t hi s question about the double-circuit phase tied |ine
represented on this figure fromthe Santan Generating

Station to the Corbell Substation. Do you recall that

question?
A. (MR, WOOLFOLK) Yes, | do.
Q And have you had a chance to run that to ground?
A (MR WOOLFOLK) | have. So a double-circuit

phase tied line is literally where you take a

doubl e-circuit 230kV |line and add a physical junper to
each phase. So if you have the 230kV structure, as you
can i nmagi ne, you have the Phase A B, and C going
downward. You put a junper across that, and it serves as
kind of a tenporary fix to provide nore capacity and
provide a single circuit to a facility. Eventually, SRP
woul d untie that junper and break the circuit apart to
serve different loads. But it's just kind of -- it's
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really enployed as a tenporary fix.

Q And anot her question cane from Menber Little
regarding Slide R25, which is the Staff letter to
Chairman Katz, also in your exhibit book as SRP No. 4.

If | am paraphrasing this correctly,
Menber Little was aski ng about the necessary i nprovenents
that would be required as a result of this project. Do

you recall that question?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes, | do.

Q And do you have a response to her inquiry?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. | know she had asked about
mtigation or overflow -- or overl oading of transforners

and what SRP woul d do.

So SRP is planning to add two 500/ 230kV
transforners at the Browning Substation. The first one
woul d occur in 2024, and then the second one will be in
the 2027 to 2028 tine franme. Previous power flow studies
have shown the need for these transforners.

So as far as cost goes, we can't attribute this
to one custoner such as Meta. |It's actually being used
to serve nultiple custoners and i nport power fromthe
500kV system and serve our 230 ring. So, therefore, SRP
will be paying for these additional transforner upgrades.

| know her question also included a nention
about fault current and what SRP's mtigation strategies
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woul d be for that and cost associated. And so by adding
transforners you do create a fault current on the system
From our power flow analysis, we have determ ned that the
second transfornmer addition is where we woul d have the
over-our-fault-current situation and need a mtigation
for that.

So SRP is currently evaluating the mtigation
strategies needed for this fault current for the
2027-2028 tine frane. SRP can do a nunber of things to
kind of mtigate that fault current, including breaking
up or separating the 69kV system So we'll | ook further
into what is needed for that later in that tinme frane.

So, again, these mtigation strategies, since
they are being beneficial to nultiple custoners and this
isn't attributed to just Meta or just one custoner, SRP
will be doing that cost as well.

CHWN. KATZ: Let ne just ask you, Counsel,
whet her you think we need a condition in the CEC that
sonehow states that SRP will continue to eval uate options
and cost responsibilities for mtigating power flow
overloads. Do you think that's needed or do you think
it's understood based upon ..

MR ACKEN:. Yeah, that's a great question. Wat
l'd like to do is take a | ook the existing CEC conditions
to see if it's already covered in there. And if not,
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per haps we can propose a condition to address that.
antici pate we woul d be having those di scussi ons soneti ne
tonmorrow. And so that would give us the evening to chew
on that questi on.

CHWN. KATZ: Right. And even though we m ght

finish our evidentiary presentation in the not-too-

di stant future, very shortly, | don't think we ought to
be looking at the CEC until it's in its final draft form
t onorr ow.

So if you could think on that overnight and if
you think there's the need to add that, we can do that
when we edit the document on the right screen tonorrow.

MR ACKEN. W will do so. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Please feel free --

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: G eat minds think alike. | put
t oget her sone proposed | anguage for a condition,
basically, that condition. Should we just wait and see
what the applicant proposes here or would you like ne to
send it to Tod so he can send it to the other nenbers or
should we just wait and see?

CHWN. KATZ: | mean, we could have her send it
to Tod, and Tod could then send it --

MEMBER HAMMY:  Yes, Menber Little, | would
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appreci ate you sending it on. And we're all pretty
famliar with the CEC, so | think we could quickly figure
out if it's already covered somewhere.

MEMBER LI TTLE: And that way the applicant could
look at it also. And if they would |ike to propose sone
| anguage changes or sonething different, then we can
di scuss that.

CHWN. KATZ: That's fine.

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay.

CHWN. KATZ: | think it would be appreciated for
us to get a preview of what your thoughts m ght be on
this matter, and it would be hel pful for M. Acken to
have that avail able tonight so that when he's in deep
t hought, he can deci de whether or not to use that
| anguage in consultation with SRP and the project
per sonnel .

MEMBER LI TTLE: Ckay. Thank you.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, Menber Little.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Haeni chen.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: | have sone questions for SRP
representative M. Wol fol k.

Hel p nme understand this. |'mlooking at the
back of this --

MEMBER HAMMY: Pl acenat .
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MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Do you have one of these?

MR WOOLFOLK: | do not, but | can find a map
on ..

CHWN. KATZ: It's the project map that we've
been using. | forgot the exhibit nunber offhand.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Turn it to the side that has
"project conpounds.” I'mgoing to tell you what ny

understanding of this is, and then you can tell ne if I'm
correct.

There's a transm ssion |line at 230kV com ng from
the top of that page parallel to the 202. Do you see
that? It's called proposed double-circuit 230kV
transm ssion |line or certificated Southeast Power Link.

MR WOOLFOLK: Yes, certificated Sout heast Power
Li nk, 230kV. Yes.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: So it conmes fromthe top of
t he page. Wiere does it cone fronf?

MR WOOLFOLK: Yes. So that's connecting to an
exi sting Browni ng-Santan circuit.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ckay. And then it cones down
vertically to the Scott Substation.

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yes.

VEMBER HAENI CHEN: ls that the term nus of it,
the end of it?

MR WOOLFOLK: |t does termnate into the Scott

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 100

Subst ati on.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Ckay.

MR WOOLFOLK: Unless there is a south |ine out
of Scott for the Southeast Power Link as well.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: COkay. Here's ny question:
To the right of this is where the project is going to be
that does the data for Facebook or whatever you want to
call it, right?

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yes.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: My under st andi ng of the
reason -- and their operating voltage is 69kV; is that
ri ght?

MR WOOLFOLK: U timately, they are taking it
down to 34.5kV.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  All right. But it's a nuch
| ower voltage than 230.

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yes.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: My under st andi ng of the two
lines comng in, at utility feet, which is 230, are for
redundancy. | n case one of them goes out, at |east they
can still operate the data center; is that right?

MR WOOLFOLK: That's correct.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: But both of those |ines cone
fromthe sane source, do they not? Down at the top of
t he page, the 230 I|i nes.
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MR WOOLFOLK: Yes. So the double-circuit 230kV
line would be tying into the 230kV SPL |i ne.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ckay. Well, | don't see how
t he redundancy works because if there is only one source
for that energy coming down, if it goes out, it goes out,
and you can't switch to another one. | thought the
pur pose of having two feeds -- |ike, for exanple, Intel
pl ants have two feeds cone fromdifferent sources
al t oget her geographically speaking. And that's for the
sanme reason, except it's even nore inportant on a
sem conduct or pl ant.

So how does that give the redundancy on this
particul ar case if the 230 fail s?

MR, WOOLFOLK: Yeah, so we're actually | eaving
the 69kV circuits that are feeding into the substation as
redundancy. So, say, the 230 were to be taken out, the
69kV woul d serve as the backup and provide the necessary
capacity for the canpus.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: But where does the 69 cone
fron? Does it cone fromthe 2307

MR WOOLFOLK: One will be comng fromthe Scott
Substation and first one will actually be comng froma
69kV Per al es- Howard | oop-i n.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: So that |ine com ng out of
the top of the Scott Substation and going into the new
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proposed substation, the energy is going to flow from
Scott up that line; is that right?

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yes.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: But where did the Scott
Substation get its energy that it can transformdown to
69?

MR WOOLFOLK: OCh, froma -- Scott wll be being
served froma series of substations and the 230kV networ k
in that area. So there's constantly power fl ow anongst
the circuits being fed to the substations in this area.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: COkay. But the only live feed
fromgeneration that | can see is the 230 com ng down
fromthe top of this picture.

MR WOOLFOLK: Ch, if you can see just bel ow the
Scott Substation, that represents the south portion of
the SPL |i ne.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN:  Ckay.

MR WOOLFOLK: And there's an additional even
circuit that runs, of course, along Warner Road that you
can -- it's kind of hard to see. So this is to represent
the existing infrastructure that will be constructed, SPL
line, in that area to serve this kind of | ooped
architecture | nmentioned in the 230kV system

MEMBER HAENICHEN:  So the flaw in this is that
this doesn't go far enough to show you the feeds?

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



© 00 ~N oo o b~ w N P

N RN N NN R R R R R R R R R
g N W N P O © O N o o0 M W N Rk O

LS CASE NO. 204 VOLUME I  06/27/2022 103

MR WOOLFOLK: Exactly. |If you were to zoom

out, you would see nore and nore substations in this area

and our --

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: See, we need that kind of
information at these hearings. It'd be good in the
future -- | knowit's too late now for this, but we need

to know, is there true redundancy here, or is it just
i magi nary? That's ny problem

Q BY MR ACKEN:. M. Wolfolk, can you turn to RS,
which | think will address Menber Haeni chen's request for
t hat zoomout view to see the nore regional 230
transm ssion systemand the |loop infrastructure to show
that the data center will be served fromnmultiple 230
subst ati ons.

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes, | agree. This R8 does
showcase a nunber of our future substations and existing
substation and the network that will be served. You can
see just in the area Browning, Sidew nder, Scott,

D nosaur. All of these kind of play into the power flow
into the specific substation we're referring to.

MEMBER HAENI CHEN: Ckay. Just a suggesti on,
then, for the future. Wen you nake one of these
presentations for a center like this, if you re going to
say it's vital, then you need to show the Commttee
exactly how that is achi eved.
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MR WOOLFOLK: Ckay. Thank you.

MEMBER HAMMY: | had a qui ck questi on.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Well -- oh. kay.

MEMBER HAMMY: |s this the right tine?

CHWN. KATZ: Menber Hamway, go ahead first, and
then we'll hear from Menber Ginnell.

MEMBER HAMMY: So who's going to own the
subst ati on?

MR WOOLFOLK: So SRP will own everything, the
230 and the 69. And there's a clear denmarcation if we
want to go to -- Meta does have their own custoner-owned
substation within that area. And there's a denmarcation
right there at basically the 69. | can try to go to the
map.

MEMBER HAMAMY: Well, | guess what |'m nore
concerned is about extra capacity at that substation.
nmean, does SRP own the extra capacity? Does SRP -- soO
' m | ooking at all those PADs around, and woul d they be
able to tap into that substation if they needed to? They
may not need to.

MR WOOLFOLK: We're just supplying, you know,
to just serve their |load. They wouldn't be -- they'd
have to --

MEMBER HAMMY: So there's no extra capacity?

MR WOOLFOLK: There m ght be extra capacity on
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the system but they would provide a | oad ranp.

MEMBER HAMMAY: Right. Well, | know they don't
exi st .

MR WOOLFOLK: Yeah. Yeah.

MEMBER HAMMY: But, yeah, we were just confused
on who owned the substation.

MR WOOLFOLK: So if you see on R19, that m ght
be the best view, just -- yeah. You can see there's
switch gear and their transforners. That kind of
boundary, that's the custoner-owned substation. And then
everything to the left of that is an SRP -- it's a
dedi cat ed substation, but it's SRP-owned and mai nt ai ned.

CHWN. KATZ: And, again, what is the green
outline to the left?

MR WOOLFOLK: The green outline just shows the
230kV i nfrastructure needed that's included in the CEC

CHWN. KATZ: GCot it.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: M. Chairman.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Ginnell.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: Maybe | m ssed sonet hi ng here,
but M. Haenichen was tal king about in the event
somet hi ng goes down. |s there a transforner needed to

pi ck that 69kV up to the 230kV? |Is there sone kind of --

is there -- does it need a 230? Wuld 69 be adequate as
a backup?
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MR WOOLFOLK: Yes. The 69Kv system the four
circuits we're planning to bring into the substation w |
be served as backup, and it is adequate to neet their
reliability standards if -- such if the two -- it
actually is planned such that if you | ose both 230kV
circuits, the 69 can supply the needed capacity.

MEMBER GRI NNELL: And | apologize. | notice
that | digressed fromthe previous presenter's conments.
But | guess if | was the public, naybe these woul d be
sone of the questions | mght ask.

Thank you.

MR WOOLFOLK: Thank you.

Q BY MR ACKEN. And would you rem nd the
Comm ttee, because that's a great question, if the data
center could be served by the 69kV line, why is the 230
needed?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) It does provide a higher I|evel
of reliability. As we tal ked about, the 230kV systemis
| ess susceptible to those weather or wildlife events.
So, ultimately, Meta, you know, requested the 230kV.

Q And so this is a custoner request as well to

ensure highest reliability?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) That is correct.

Q And that custonmer will be paying for this
proj ect ?
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(MR WOOLFOLK) That is correct.
CHWN. KATZ: And what is the transfornmati on of

the voltage fromthe substation to the data center?

Because | know they're going to step it down to 34, but

explain that a little bit to us.

see,

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yeah.
So shown in that sane substation, as you can

they' ve got 120 MVA transforners that are

essentially 69 to 34 1/2kV shown. And then the

swi tchgear takes it at 34 1/2kV. And then further down,

W t hi
ot her

| ower

n Meta's data center canpus, there would be sone
pad- nounted transforners to even transformt hat
to the 34 1/2 to --

CHWN. KATZ: But what is the voltage that is

going fromthe substation to the Meta facility? 1Is it

stepped down from 230 before it enters --

MR WOOLFOLK: Yes. Yes. So right there within

the green outline --

CHWN. KATZ: Yes.
VR, WOOLFOLK: -- those are 230/ 69kV

transforners. So it's taking it down from 230 to 69.

Q

CHWN. KATZ: Cot it.
BY MR ACKEN: And then Meta is taking it

further from69 to | think you said 34.5, is that

correct, on its side of the substation?
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A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. That is correct.
Q M. Wolfolk, I think we're ready for sone
concl usi on remarks for you.

Was the CEC application prepared under your
directi on and supervi sion?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes, it was.

Q And do you have any changes or corrections at
this tinme?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Not at this tine.

Q | s the CEC application true and accurate to the
best of your know edge?

A. (MR, WOOLFOLK)  Yes.

Q And do you have any final comments for the
Comm ttee?

A (MR WOOLFOLK) Yes. | just want to thank the
Commttee for your tine and attention to this project.
As you can see, the 230kV infrastructure needed for Mta
toreliably serve themis very inportant.

You can al so see fromMs. Pollio' s testinony
that it's environnentally conpatible, and it had no najor
i npacts to the area.

As you can al so see from Ms. Horgen's testinony,
SRP had a robust public outreach process that included
newspapers, mailers, social nedia.

And so | just really want to thank you again for
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your time and ask you for approval of the project.

MR. ACKEN:. Thank you, Panel, and thank you
Comm ttee.

That includes our direct case.

CHWN. KATZ: Do any of the Committee nenbers
have any further questions for our three panelists at
this tinme?

MEMBER LI TTLE: M. Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: Yes, Menber Little.

MEMBER LI TTLE: | just have one | ast question.

| noticed in the |ist of comments from peopl e,
l|'mnot quite sure where the comments cane from but the
question was asked several tines about undergroundi ng.
And | was just wondering what kind of a response those --
t he questi oners were given. You know, |

MR WOOLFOLK: Yes. So SRP does have an
obligation to serve its custoners with the | owest cost
reliable power. Qur standard is overhead construction.

Under gr oundi ng, you know, it can be roughly 10 tines nore

expensive. |In this case, our planning estinmate of 29
mllion per mle, for a half mle it would be $14 1/2
mllion. So overhead is 3 mllion. So it's our standard

to do overhead destruction, and it provides as high
reliability if not higher than underground.
MEMBER LI TTLE: | understand that. | was just
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curious. | know that Intel did underground sone of
their -- or paid to have SRP underground sone of the |ine
that fed their new facility. But that was nore in an
area that really was nuch busier than this. | was just
curious what response was given to the public.

MR WOOLFOLK: That's correct. You're right.
In this area, being an undevel oped State |land with
overhead transm ssion lines in the near area, it seened
to make sense that it would be overhead and no maj or
obst acl es and, you know ...

MEMBER LI TTLE: Thank you.

MR WOOLFOLK: Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Was any verbal or witten response
given to those expressing that concern or question?

MR WOCOLFOLK: No.

M5. HORGEN: No. We did not receive anything in
writing on underground. Everything was verbal.

MR, WOOLFOLK: Just verbal during open houses.

CHWN. KATZ: But did you explain to themwhy it
woul dn't be underground at those open houses?

MR WOOLFOLK:  Yes.

Q BY MR ACKEN:. And if | could follow up on that,
Ms. Horgen, did you al so have a frequently asked question
on the website regardi ng under ground?

A (M5. HORGEN) Yes. W had frequently asked
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questi ons.

Q And did it provide the sane response that
M. Wool fol k just provided?

A (M5. HORGEN) Yes.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: And, again, | don't know,

M. Acken, if you're done, if you and Ms. Gl bert are
done with questioning these witnesses. |t didn't appear
that the Commttee had any further questions of them

| think, though, it mght nake sense for you to
wait and see whet her we have any public comments this
afternoon and then maybe begin tonmorrow s session wth a
brief closing argunent.

MR. ACKEN. Thank you, M. Chairnan.

One procedural issue is the Comm ssion
reschedul ed the open neeting after this hearing was set.
| have two itens on consent. And that starts at 9 a.m
| hope they both stay on consent. W'Il|l see. But
per haps we could start at 9:30 just in case.

CHWN. KATZ: | don't have a problemwth
starting at 9: 30.

Wiat | would little ask, though, has Tod sent
you the PDF and Wird versions of the proposed CEC with
our edits in it so that you already have that?

MR ACKEN: | have not seen that, but that
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doesn't nean he hasn't sent it, but |I'll doubl e-check on
ny end.

CHW. KATZ: And I'Il call himshortly that that
gets sent to you because it's primarily what you proposed
with grammatical or typographical corrections as well as
an elimnation of the references to former CEC | anguage.

MR. ACKEN. And one ot her procedural item before
| forget -- ny co-counsel rem nds ne because |I'mterrible
at renenbering this -- 1'd |like to nove the adni ssion of
SRP Exhibits 1 through 6. You haven't seen 6, but we'll
make that available. And that's the exhibit we tal ked
about Meta's water use, but the other five we discussed
earlier today.

CHWN. KATZ: Since | have both you and

Ms. Grabel here, 1'll end up lecturing you like | got
yelled at by a judge years ago. W don't nove exhibits,
we of fer them and the judge accepts them or receives
them But | don't really care. | know where exactly
you're comng from It mght have been when | was at the
Attorney Ceneral's Advocacy Institute i n Washi ngton,
D.C., when | was an assistant U S. attorney. But we got
|l ectured that it's notions that change things and offers
of things such as evidence. But you'll never make that
m st ake agai n.

MR. ACKEN. Can | get sone CLE credit for that?
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CHWN. KATZ: Yeah, at | east 15 m nutes' worth.

But on a serious note, | think we need to take a
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| ook unl ess there's sonething nore we need to do, and see
what ' s happeni ng.

My son cane in last night fromL. A, so |I'mnot
going to stay for the generous feast this evening, but I
do understand for the nenbers of the Conmttee -- and we
can go off the record on this.

(A recess was taken from3:59 p.m to 4:00 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: It was ny intent to not have the
announcenent because it's not substantively related to
the matter regarding dinner this evening.

MR. ACKEN. | have nothing further.

Ms. Grabel has offered to provide her public
comments now i f you want to hear from her now. W still
are going to have to wait until 5:30 for the general
public, but if you want to use this tinme and have her
present her --

CHWN. KATZ: | see no reason why she can't
provi de those comments to us now and be out of here,
unl ess she's just having such a good tinme she wants to
hang out .

MS. GRABEL: | |ove your conpany.

Thank you, M. Chairman and Menber Haeni chen,
Comm tt ee nenbers.
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For the record, ny nane is Meghan Grabel from
the law firmof Osborn Mal edon. | represent Meta, the
custonmer who will benefit fromthe Project Huckl eberry
transm ssion facilities that you ve been hearing about
t oday.

As the Commttee has heard today, Project
Huckl eberry will provide the necessary transm ssion
infrastructure to serve the Mesa data center being
devel oped by Meta in Mesa, Arizona.

On August 12th, 2021, Meta announced a
devel opnent plan for that data center, which is | ocated
on a 389-acre private parcel of |and at the southeast
corner of Elliot Road and Ell sworth Road. The data
center is expected to create approximately 200
operational jobs and approximately 2,000 jobs at peak
constructi on.

The devel opnment represents a continuation of the
t echnol ogy sector growth in Arizona, especially data
center growh for which the Phoeni x area has recently
been ranked second nationally.

As the primary beneficiary of Project
Huckl eberry, Meta is funding the cost of SRP' s electrical
infrastructure that's required to serve it.

Met a appreciates SRP's broad public outreach and
engagenent efforts for this project as well as the
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techni cal work that SRP undertook to eval uate the project
ar ea.

As the CEC application shows, the project is
environnental ly conpatible with the devel opnent of
cul tural resources and the total environnent of the area.

So, again, Meta wants to thank very much SRP,
the City of Mesa, Maricopa County, and this Commttee for
their work on this matter and supports a yes vote on this
appl i cation.

Thank you.

MEMBER HAMMY: Can we ask a question or no?

CHWN. KATZ: W can't nornmally engage in
conversation in public conment.

MS. GRABEL: Sorry.

MEMBER HAMMY: 1'd like to know how nany
full-time enpl oyees, once the center is up and goi ng,
wll this data center enploy?

MR ACKEN:. W& will have that answer for you
t onor r ow nor ni ng.

M5. GRABEL: | actually think | addressed that
in the comments.

MEMBER HAMMY: | think you did. | mssed it.
She did say it.

CHWN. KATZ: 200 j obs.
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MEMBER HAMMY: 200 full tine. 2,000
constructi on.

CHWN. KATZ: That's what was in the comment.

MEMBER HAMAMAY:  Thank you.

MS. GRABEL: Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: W won't require Mark Zuckerberg to
swear that everything you said is supported by the
company.

Thank you.

MR ACKEN: M. Wolfolk is still under oath,
and he can confirmthat understandi ng as well.

MR WOOLFOLK: | can confirmthose figures,
2,000 construction jobs and 200 permanent j obs.

CHWN. KATZ: And the way that we're going to --
we'll take a break now. It gives us about an hour and a
hal f, unfortunately or fortunately. But |I'm not
expecting we'll have a | arge nunmber of coments, if any.
And what we'll then do is take a break for the evening
and cone back at 9: 30 tonorrow norning.

And hopefully you'll be available to us,

M. Acken, for purposes of closing argunent and
presentation of the CEC to us for review W wll go

t hrough that, all of the conditions and Fi ndi ngs of Fact
and Concl usions of Law, but we will hold off on a final
vot e.
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MEMBER GRI NNELL: Did you say 9:30? Are we
nmeeting at 9:00 or 9: 307

CHWN. KATZ: 9:30 because it's possible that
M. Acken has a matter on the consent agenda before the
Cor poration Comm ssion tonorrow. |If they don't turn it
into a discussion nmatter, nost of the consent agenda
itens are voted on

They' || say, Nos. 1 through 6, all in favor say

aye. "Aye. "

So he wanted to nake sure he was available to
address the Corporation Conm ssion if they don't approve
his two matters on the consent agenda as proposed.

MEMBER GRINNELL: And I wll call you offline.
Thank you.

CHWN. KATZ: Ckay. W stand in recess and off
t he record.

MR ACKEN. Thank you.

(A recess was taken from4:04 p.m to 4:06 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: After | gave ny |aw school |ecture
to M. Acken regarding offering rather than noving
exhibits -- and it's even better for Ms. G| bert because
she never has to do that wongfully in the courtroom when
she first gets started.
On a serious note, Exhibits 1 through 6, which

have been offered, are admtted i nto evidence and w ||
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beconme part of the record.

(Exhibits SRP-1 through SRP-6 were admtted into
evi dence.)

CHWN. KATZ: W need to nake sure to get copies,
| think two copies, of those exhibits to the court
reporter.

MR ACKEN: Yes, we wll.

CHW. KATZ: And I'Il confirmthat wth Tod, but
| believe there was a request for two hard copies of the
exhibits. But if I'"mwong, you can check with Marta and
find that out and let us know, and I'll check with Tod.
| just want to make sure we get the reporter everything
that i s needed.

Again, we're in recess.

(A recess was taken from4:07 p.m to
5:42 p.m)

CHWN. KATZ: W're back on the record. There
was sone confusion. A couple of our Conmttee nenbers
went on the public comment |ink rather than on the
Commttee |ink.

But we now have Mary Hamnay, we have Toby
Little, and Rck Ginnell all on the proper I|ink.

And we have at | east one person who is signed
in, a Mark Freeman, who is signed in for public comrent,
and | believe he wishes to address the Comm ttee.
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And if he is ready to do so, he nmy approach
that podium There are sone m crophones. And you'll Iet
us know what your sentinents and feelings are regarding
this project.

And then we'll make sure if there' s anybody el se
present, we'll confirmthat. And | believe there is one
person that is going to appear virtually to make some
comment s.

And | apol ogi ze to everybody for any del ay that
we have had.

And did R ck di sappear again? Wat is he doing?

We'll be just a mnute, M. Freenan.
apol ogi ze to you. W just |ost one of our Commttee
menbers.

MR. FREEMAN. No probl em

CHWN. KATZ: He's back.

Thanks, Rick. You' re with us on the right |ink
at this point in tine.

So we have a M. Mark Freeman, who w shes to
address the Commttee, and we have all of our nenbers who
are physically present except Menber Hamwvay is now with
us virtually. Toby Little and Rick Ginnell are also
with us.

And, M. Freeman, just -- even though |I know who
you are, at least by the slip you filled out, just let us
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know what your nane is, and then feel free to offer any
coments. Unfortunately, we can't get into a di scussion
W th you or answer questions. But anything you m ght say
wll be listened to and, if necessary, we will discuss it
during our deliberations tonorrow.

MR. FREEMAN. Thank you, sir. | suppose you're
t he Chai r man.

CHWN. KATZ: That's what they tell ne.

MR FREEMAN: So ny nane is Mark Freeman. |
live in Mesa, Arizona, 1118 East Lockwood in Mesa.

|"'mvery famliar with this area, and |'mvery
famliar with SRP and how they deliver their power. So
l'min support of the line siting. | know that SRP has
taken environnentally and the nost direct route to
provi de power to this substation.

Thi s substation, as you know, will provide power
to Meta, which is extrenely inportant to the Gty of
Mesa, and also it wll provide a renewabl e energy power
source for the area and Meta as well. And that's why |
support it, not only for the renewable portion, but also
t he conventional power that will be serviced out of
t here.

So with that, thank you for your tine, and | et
you know that I'"'min support of this project.

CHWN. KATZ: And | thank you for your patience
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wth us for any del ays we put you through today. And
you're welcone on the link to join us virtually tonorrow
if you want to sit through our deliberations at 9:30

t onor r ow.

MR FREEMAN:  Well, thank you. | just cane from
the farm so this is really nice to get into sone air
conditioning. So | appreciate the power.

CHWN. KATZ: Be safe and have a great afternoon.

We have a couple of folks online. |1Is there
anybody el se in the audience that wants to address the
Comm ttee before virtual participants?

(No response.)

CHWN. KATZ: Hearing silence, we will wait to
see if the two or three people who are online virtually
want to address the Conmttee.

For those two or three fol ks who are on
virtually, | believe that the technical people asked you
iIf you wi shed to address the Commttee, and no one raised
t hei r hands.

"1l give you one nore shot to let us know if
you wi sh to nake any comments. |If not, you' re nore than
wel come to join us at 9:30 tonorrow on the virtual |ink
and listen to the closing argunent of counsel and our
del i berati ons.

|t appears that nobody w shes to nake conment.
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So | thank those of you who have participated virtually
or at least |listened in.

| wel cone you back tonorrow and thank you for
your patience in waiting for us this evening.

And we are going to stand in recess until 9:30
tonorrow norning. 1"l probably be here about an hour
early before then to enjoy a good breakfast. And I
remnd the Commttee nenbers that there are sone
festivities available to you shortly.

We do stand in recess. Thank you.

(The hearing recessed at 5:48 p.m)
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STATE OF ARI ZONA )
)
COUNTY OF MARI CCOPA )

BE | T KNOMNN that the foregoi ng proceedi ngs were
t aken before me; that the foregoing pages are a full,
true, and accurate record of the proceedings, all done to
the best of ny skill and ability; that the proceedi ngs
were taken down by ne in shorthand and thereafter reduced
to print under ny direction.

| CERTIFY that | amin no way related to any of the
parties hereto nor aml in any way interested in the
out cone her eof .

| CERTIFY that | have conplied with the ethical
obligations set forth in ACIA 7-206(F)(3) and
ACJIA 7-206(J)(1)(9)(1) and (2). Dated at Phoeni X,
Ari zona, this 30th day of June, 2022.
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v&; a-.e@(\ Ljﬁzj adloua_
@,

CAROLYN T. SULLT VAN
Arizona Certified Reporter
No. 50528

| CERTIFY that GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC, has
complied with the ethical obligations set forth in
ACJIA 7-206(J)(1)(9g) (1) through (6).

Y
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GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC
Arizona Regi stered Firm
No. R1035

GLENNI E REPORTI NG SERVI CES, LLC 602. 266. 6535
www. gl enni e-reporting. com Phoeni x, AZ



	Index
	 Number Index
	0
	0.5-mile (1)

	1
	1 (9)
	1,000 (4)
	1,000-foot (2)
	1-mile (7)
	1.4 (2)
	1/2 (2)
	1/2kV (2)
	10 (1)
	10,089 (1)
	100-foot (2)
	11 (1)
	1118 (1)
	120 (1)
	12th (1)
	13,000 (1)
	13th (3)
	14 (2)
	14th (1)
	15 (2)
	15-minute (1)
	150 (1)
	1500 (2)
	15th (2)
	17 (1)
	175 (1)
	18 (3)
	180 (2)
	18th (1)
	1937 (1)
	1950 (1)
	199 (1)
	1:30 (1)

	2
	2 (9)
	2,000 (5)
	2,579 (1)
	2,900 (1)
	2.5 (2)
	20 (2)
	20-mile (4)
	200 (5)
	2014 (1)
	202 (5)
	2021 (7)
	2022 (5)
	2023 (4)
	2024 (2)
	2027 (1)
	2027-2028 (1)
	2028 (1)
	2040 (2)
	21 (2)
	22nd (3)
	230 (17)
	230/69kV (2)
	230kV (51)
	230kV/69kV (1)
	23rd (2)
	24 (3)
	25.5 (1)
	258 (1)
	27 (1)
	27th (6)
	28th (1)
	29 (1)
	2:00 (1)
	2:41 (1)

	3
	3 (10)
	300-foot (1)
	300-foot-wide (4)
	302,400 (1)
	32 (1)
	34 (4)
	34.5 (1)
	34.5kV (1)
	382 (1)
	389 (1)
	389-acre (1)
	3:00 (1)
	3:06 (1)
	3:59 (1)
	3rd (2)

	4
	4 (4)
	4:00 (1)
	4:04 (1)
	4:06 (1)
	4:07 (1)
	4th (2)

	5
	5 (2)
	50 (1)
	500/230kV (1)
	500kV (1)
	5:30 (16)
	5:42 (1)
	5:45 (1)
	5:48 (1)
	5th (1)

	6
	6 (5)
	6,238 (1)
	6/22 (1)
	60 (1)
	600 (1)
	69 (10)
	69kV (38)
	6:00 (3)

	7
	7,500 (1)
	7,995 (1)
	7:00 (1)
	7th (1)

	8
	85281 (2)

	9
	9 (1)
	9,885 (1)
	9,886 (1)
	900 (1)
	978 (1)
	9:00 (1)
	9:30 (9)
	9th(1)


	$
	$14 (1)

	A
	A-1 (1)
	A-4 (1)
	A-5 (1)
	A-6 (1)
	Abel-Pfister-Ball (1)
	able (3)
	above (1)
	ACC (2)
	accepts (1)
	access (3)
	accessible (1)
	accessing (1)
	accomplish (1)
	According (1)
	Accordingly (1)
	accurate (1)
	achieved (1)
	Acken (75)
	acquired (1)
	Acquisition (2)
	acreage (1)
	acres (2)
	across (6)
	action (1)
	active (4)
	actively (1)
	activity (5)
	actual (5)
	actually (19)
	ad (1)
	add (7)
	adding (1)
	addition (5)
	additional (9)
	address (12)
	addressed (1)
	adequate (2)
	adequately (1)
	adjacent (2)
	administer (1)
	administration (1)
	admission (1)
	admitted (2)
	ads (4)
	advertise (1)
	advised (1)
	Advocacy (1)
	advocate (1)
	aerial (6)
	affected (4)
	affidavits (1)
	affiliated (1)
	affirmation (3)
	affirmed (3)
	afternoon (7)
	again (36)
	agencies (2)
	agency (1)
	agenda (3)
	ago (4)
	agree (2)
	agreement (1)
	Agricultural (1)
	agriculture (1)
	ahead (7)
	AICP (1)
	air (1)
	alignment (1)
	alike (1)
	allow (1)
	allows (1)
	along (5)
	alternate (1)
	alternatives (1)
	altogether (1)
	always (3)
	Alysha (1)
	American (1)
	amongst (2)
	amount (1)
	analyses (1)
	analysis (12)
	analyst (2)
	analyzed (2)
	angle (1)
	announce (2)
	announced (1)
	announcement (3)
	annually (2)
	anticipate (5)
	anticipated (1)
	anxiously (1)
	Apache (2)
	apart (1)
	apologies (3)
	apologize (6)
	appear (2)
	appearing (3)
	appears (1)
	applicant (6)
	applicant's (1)
	application (25)
	applied (1)
	applying (1)
	appreciate (3)
	appreciated (1)
	appreciates (1)
	approach (3)
	appropriate (6)
	approval (6)
	approvals (1)
	approve (5)
	approved (7)
	approximately (7)
	April (6)
	APS (1)
	archeological (3)
	architecture (3)
	area (115)
	areas (13)
	argument (3)
	arise (1)
	Arizona (25)
	around (10)
	arrow (2)
	article (1)
	aspects (2)
	assess (1)
	assessment (1)
	assessments (1)
	assistant (1)
	assisted (2)
	assisting (1)
	associated (8)
	Association (1)
	assuming (2)
	attend (1)
	attended (2)
	attendees (3)
	attention (1)
	attorney (3)
	attract (2)
	attribute (1)
	attributed (1)
	audience (1)
	AUDIOVISUAL (1)
	August (2)
	available (10)
	Avenue (2)
	average (2)
	avoid (1)
	awaiting (1)
	aware (3)
	away (1)
	aye (3)
	ayes (1)

	B
	Bachelor (2)
	back (18)
	background (9)
	backup (3)
	ball (1)
	Bar (1)
	barely (1)
	base (1)
	based (14)
	basically (5)
	basins (3)
	bearings (2)
	beauty (2)
	become (1)
	began (1)
	begin (1)
	beginning (2)
	behalf (2)
	below (1)
	beneficial (1)
	beneficiary (1)
	benefit (4)
	Bert (3)
	best (5)
	better (4)
	beyond (1)
	big (2)
	binder (1)
	Biological (6)
	biology (1)
	bird (3)
	bird's-eye (2)
	bisect (1)
	bisecting (1)
	bit (4)
	bite (1)
	blue (9)
	blue-purple (1)
	board (1)
	boil (1)
	book (1)
	bordered (1)
	both (16)
	bottom (4)
	Boulevard (1)
	boundaried (1)
	boundary (7)
	bounded (1)
	box (1)
	boxes (1)
	Branch (1)
	Branum (1)
	break (5)
	breakers (3)
	breakfast (1)
	breaking (1)
	brief (1)
	briefings (4)
	briefly (2)
	bring (2)
	bringing (1)
	brings (1)
	broad (1)
	Browning (2)
	Browning-Santan (1)
	brownish (1)
	buffer (8)
	build (1)
	building (1)
	buildings (1)
	built (3)
	burden (1)
	burrowing (2)
	busier (1)
	business (5)
	Butte (2)
	button (1)

	C
	C-1 (1)
	C-2 (2)
	call (11)
	called (7)
	calls (1)
	came (6)
	campaign (15)
	campus (7)
	can (151)
	CAP (3)
	capability (1)
	capacity (9)
	capture (3)
	card (1)
	care (1)
	carefully (1)
	Carolyn (1)
	case (12)
	cases (1)
	catch (1)
	catchment (2)
	categories (1)
	causes (1)
	CEC (30)
	center (51)
	center's (2)
	centers (6)
	certainly (1)
	Certificate (2)
	certificated (5)
	Certified (1)
	Chairman (35)
	Chairman's (1)
	Chamber (5)
	chance (1)
	change (1)
	changes (2)
	channel (10)
	characterize (1)
	characterized (2)
	check (2)
	chew (1)
	CHMN (105)
	choose (1)
	chorus (1)
	church (1)
	churches (2)
	circuit (8)
	circuits (7)
	cities (2)
	City (31)
	clarify (5)
	Class (12)
	CLE (2)
	clear (1)
	clicked (1)
	clicks (2)
	close (9)
	closed (1)
	closest (14)
	closing (3)
	co-counsel (4)
	coal (1)
	codes (3)
	color (3)
	Colorado (3)
	combination (1)
	coming (9)
	comment (26)
	commenter (1)
	commenters (1)
	comments (24)
	Commerce (5)
	commercial (2)
	Commission (7)
	Committee (50)
	common (1)
	communication (2)
	communications (2)
	community (17)
	company (2)
	Compatibility (4)
	compatible (9)
	complete (1)
	completed (7)
	completion (1)
	compliance (2)
	components (11)
	compounds (1)
	computer (2)
	concern (3)
	concerned (1)
	concluded (1)
	concludes (1)
	conclusion (3)
	conclusions (9)
	condition (4)
	conditioning (1)
	conditions (4)
	conducted (7)
	conference (2)
	confident (2)
	confirm (4)
	confirmed (1)
	confirming (1)
	conflict (3)
	confused (2)
	confusion (1)
	conjunction (1)
	connect (3)
	connected (1)
	connecting (3)
	connection (1)
	connections (1)
	consent (5)
	Conservancy (1)
	conserve (2)
	consider (1)
	considered (7)
	consist (1)
	consistent (8)
	constantly (1)
	construct (1)
	constructed (4)
	construction (18)
	construction-related (1)
	constructive (1)
	consultant (1)
	Consultation (3)
	consulted (1)
	consulting (1)
	consume (2)
	consumption (1)
	Cont (1)
	contact (3)
	contacts (1)
	contain (1)
	contained (1)
	continually (1)
	continuation (2)
	continue (5)
	continued (1)
	continuing (3)
	control (14)
	controls (1)
	conventional (1)
	conversation (1)
	converting (1)
	cooling (3)
	coordinated (3)
	coordination (1)
	copies (4)
	copy (1)
	Corbell (2)
	corner (1)
	Corporation (3)
	corrected (1)
	correcting (1)
	correction (2)
	corrections (2)
	correctly (1)
	correspond (2)
	corresponded (1)
	corresponding (2)
	corresponds (1)
	corridor (34)
	corridors (1)
	cost (7)
	counsel (7)
	County (7)
	County-owned (1)
	couple (9)
	course (6)
	court (1)
	courtesy (1)
	Courtney (4)
	courtroom (1)
	cover (3)
	covered (4)
	create (2)
	created (1)
	credit (1)
	Creek (1)
	criteria (3)
	critical (3)
	cross (1)
	crossing (6)
	crude (1)
	CTA (2)
	cultural (7)
	cumulatively (1)
	curious (3)
	current (6)
	currently (6)
	cursor (6)
	customer (12)
	customer-owned (2)
	customers (12)
	cut (1)
	cutoff (1)
	cutting (1)

	D
	data (62)
	date (7)
	dates (2)
	David (2)
	day (4)
	daycares (1)
	DC (1)
	dealing (1)
	December (3)
	decide (1)
	decided (1)
	decision (2)
	deck (1)
	dedicated (3)
	deep (1)
	defer (2)
	defined (2)
	Definitely (1)
	degree (1)
	delay (1)
	delays (1)
	deliberations (5)
	deliver (1)
	delivered (5)
	delivery (1)
	demarcation (2)
	denotes (2)
	deny (2)
	Department (13)
	depending (1)
	depicted (1)
	depictions (1)
	describe (15)
	described (1)
	describes (1)
	designated (4)
	designation (7)
	designations (4)
	desirable (1)
	desktop (2)
	destruction (1)
	detail (2)
	details (1)
	determine (1)
	determined (7)
	determining (1)
	detrimental (4)
	developed (7)
	developing (1)
	development (23)
	developments (11)
	devoid (1)
	dictate (1)
	dictates (1)
	difference (1)
	different (13)
	Dignity (1)
	digressed (1)
	dinner (1)
	Dinosaur (1)
	direct (10)
	directing (1)
	direction (1)
	directly (1)
	disappear (1)
	discharge (1)
	disconnect (3)
	discovered (3)
	discuss (4)
	discussed (3)
	discussing (2)
	discussion (4)
	discussions (1)
	dispense (1)
	dispensing (1)
	distance (4)
	distant (2)
	distinct (1)
	distribution (4)
	District (2)
	disturbance (3)
	disturbed (7)
	Ditch (1)
	diverse (2)
	docketed (1)
	document (1)
	documents (3)
	done (14)
	double (2)
	double-check (1)
	double-circuit (14)
	down (14)
	downward (1)
	draft (1)
	DRAGO (2)
	draw (1)
	driving (1)
	drop (2)
	drops (1)
	due (1)
	duly (1)
	during (2)
	DWR (2)

	E
	E-1 (1)
	E-2 (1)
	eagerly (1)
	earlier (10)
	early (5)
	easier (2)
	East (16)
	east-west (1)
	eastern (1)
	Eastmark (10)
	easy (1)
	eat (1)
	eblast (1)
	economic (2)
	edge (1)
	edit (1)
	edits (1)
	education (2)
	educational (3)
	effect (2)
	effective (1)
	effects (5)
	efforts (5)
	either (4)
	electric (1)
	electrical (3)
	elevation (1)
	elimination (1)
	Elliot (16)
	Ellsworth (13)
	else (4)
	email (8)
	emails (17)
	EMF (1)
	emitted (1)
	employ (1)
	employed (5)
	employees (1)
	employment (3)
	en (1)
	encouraging (1)
	end (7)
	energy (4)
	engage (2)
	engaged (1)
	engagement (4)
	engineer (2)
	engineering (1)
	English (3)
	enhancement (1)
	enjoy (1)
	enough (2)
	ensure (2)
	entered (1)
	enters (1)
	entire (1)
	entities (2)
	entitled (2)
	entitlement (1)
	environment (3)
	Environmental (17)
	environmentally (4)
	equipment (4)
	error (3)
	especially (2)
	essentially (1)
	established (1)
	estimate (2)
	estimated (1)
	evaluate (2)
	evaluating (2)
	evaluation (1)
	even (16)
	evening (7)
	event (3)
	events (3)
	eventually (2)
	everybody (4)
	everyone (3)
	evidence (5)
	evidentiary (1)
	exact (3)
	exactly (6)
	EXAMINATION (4)
	examined (1)
	example (5)
	examples (2)
	exceed (1)
	excellent (1)
	except (3)
	exception (1)
	exceptions (1)
	excuse (3)
	Exhibit (35)
	exhibits (10)
	exist (1)
	existing (37)
	expand (1)
	expansion (1)
	expect (2)
	expected (3)
	expecting (1)
	expedite (1)
	expensive (1)
	experience (4)
	experienced (1)
	explain (3)
	explained (1)
	expose (1)
	expressing (1)
	extend (1)
	extra (4)
	extremely (1)

	F
	F-1 (1)
	face (1)
	Facebook (5)
	facilitating (1)
	facilities (8)
	facility (24)
	facing (1)
	fact (6)
	fails (1)
	fair (1)
	familiar (7)
	far (13)
	farm (1)
	farther (1)
	farthest (1)
	fast (1)
	Faster (1)
	fault (4)
	favor (2)
	feast (1)
	features (5)
	February (2)
	fed (3)
	federal (10)
	feed (1)
	feedback (1)
	feeding (1)
	feeds (3)
	Feel (4)
	feelings (1)
	feels (1)
	feet (11)
	felt (1)
	fencing (4)
	festivities (1)
	few (3)
	field (6)
	field-verified (1)
	fields (1)
	Figure (6)
	figures (1)
	file (1)
	filed (2)
	filled (3)
	final (6)
	Finally (1)
	find (4)
	finding (1)
	findings (2)
	fine (5)
	finish (1)
	finished (1)
	firm (1)
	First (14)
	Fish (5)
	five (5)
	fix (2)
	flaw (1)
	flood (10)
	floor (1)
	Florida (2)
	flow (10)
	flying (1)
	flyover (1)
	focus (1)
	focused (1)
	folks (4)
	follow (10)
	followed (2)
	following (1)
	follows (2)
	footprint (2)
	forefront (3)
	foreground (1)
	forest (1)
	forget (1)
	Forgive (1)
	forgot (1)
	form (2)
	formal (2)
	formed (1)
	former (1)
	formerly (1)
	forms (2)
	forth (3)
	fortunately (1)
	forward (4)
	found (3)
	four (5)
	fourth (1)
	frame (4)
	Frankly (1)
	free (3)
	Freeman (9)
	French (7)
	frequently (2)
	Friday (2)
	front (1)
	full (4)
	full-time (1)
	fully (1)
	funding (5)
	further (11)
	furthest (1)
	future (17)

	G
	gain (2)
	gallons (5)
	Game (2)
	gas (1)
	gather (1)
	gave (3)
	gear (3)
	general (11)
	General's (1)
	Generally (5)
	Generating (1)
	generation (3)
	generous (1)
	geographically (1)
	geothermal (1)
	Germann (1)
	gets (2)
	Gilbert (17)
	given (3)
	gives (6)
	glad (1)
	goal (1)
	goes (5)
	Good (10)
	government (2)
	governmental (1)
	grab (1)
	Grabel (10)
	grammatical (1)
	granted (4)
	Great (15)
	greatly (1)
	green (19)
	grid (1)
	Grinnell (31)
	ground (5)
	grounds (3)
	Group (5)
	growth (6)
	Guadalupe (1)
	guard (1)
	guess (7)
	guide (1)
	guidelines (1)
	guys (2)

	H
	H-1 (2)
	habitat (5)
	habitats (3)
	Haenichen (28)
	Haenichen's (1)
	half (8)
	half-a-mile-long (1)
	Hamway (48)
	hand (1)
	handful (1)
	handle (2)
	hands (1)
	hang (1)
	happen (2)
	happening (1)
	happens (1)
	Happy (2)
	hard (3)
	hash-lined (1)
	hashtagged (1)
	hatch (1)
	Hawes (5)
	head (1)
	heads (1)
	Health (1)
	hear (6)
	heard (1)
	hearing (20)
	hearings (1)
	height (1)
	heights (1)
	Hello (3)
	help (2)
	helpful (1)
	Here's (1)
	Hey (1)
	high (1)
	high-tech (4)
	high-technology (1)
	high-voltage (1)
	higher (4)
	highest (1)
	highlight (3)
	highlighted (3)
	highlighting (1)
	highly (1)
	highway (2)
	HIP (1)
	historic (5)
	historical (2)
	historically (3)
	hits (3)
	HOA (1)
	HOAs (3)
	hold (1)
	holding (1)
	hope (3)
	hopeful (1)
	hopefully (1)
	hopes (1)
	Horgen (46)
	Horgen's (1)
	Hospital (2)
	hosted (2)
	hour (5)
	house (18)
	houses (5)
	Huckleberry (11)
	hum (1)
	hybrid (2)
	hydro (1)

	I
	I-60 (1)
	idea (2)
	ideal (1)
	identification (7)
	identified (3)
	identifies (3)
	identify (4)
	identifying (4)
	III (7)
	imaginary (1)
	imagine (1)
	immediately (2)
	Impact (3)
	impacts (10)
	impediments (1)
	implementation (1)
	import (1)
	important (12)
	improve (1)
	Improvement (3)
	improvements (3)
	in-house (1)
	in-person (7)
	include (2)
	included (19)
	includes (7)
	including (4)
	inconvenience (1)
	increased (1)
	increases (2)
	Independent (1)
	Indian (1)
	indicate (1)
	indicated (2)
	indication (1)
	indicative (1)
	industrial (8)
	industries (1)
	inform (2)
	information (29)
	informational (1)
	informed (1)
	infrastructure (20)
	inherently (1)
	initial (2)
	initially (3)
	input (3)
	inquiries (2)
	inquiry (1)
	Inspirian (1)
	Instagram (2)
	instance (1)
	instead (3)
	Institute (2)
	integral (1)
	integrated (1)
	Intel (2)
	intensive (1)
	intent (1)
	interaction (1)
	interconnect (2)
	interconnection (3)
	interest (3)
	interested (1)
	interesting (1)
	interests (1)
	interference (2)
	interim (1)
	international (2)
	intervene (1)
	intervention (1)
	into (39)
	introduce (2)
	introduced (1)
	introductory (1)
	inundate (1)
	investigate (1)
	investigations (1)
	involved (2)
	Involvement (1)
	IPaC (1)
	islands (1)
	isometric (1)
	issue (4)
	issued (2)
	issues (4)
	item (1)
	items (4)

	J
	Jack (1)
	January (2)
	Jennings (1)
	Jim (1)
	job (1)
	jobs (6)
	join (2)
	judge (2)
	judicial (1)
	July (1)
	jumper (3)
	Junction (2)
	June (16)
	jurisdiction (9)
	jurisdictional (5)
	jurisdictions (4)

	K
	KATZ (108)
	keep (2)
	Kenda (6)
	Kevin (6)
	key (6)
	kind (24)
	knowledge (2)
	known (2)
	KOP (4)
	KP (2)

	L
	L14 (1)
	L19 (1)
	L2 (1)
	L38 (1)
	L39 (1)
	L61 (4)
	L67 (1)
	L70 (1)
	L71 (1)
	LA (1)
	labeled (2)
	labels (1)
	Lake (1)
	land (92)
	landowner (1)
	lands (2)
	landscaping (1)
	Lane (2)
	language (4)
	large (5)
	larger (2)
	largest (1)
	last (10)
	lastly (2)
	late (2)
	later (4)
	latest (1)
	launch (3)
	law (6)
	lead (3)
	learn (3)
	least (6)
	leaving (1)
	lecture (1)
	lectured (1)
	lecturing (1)
	left (11)
	left-hand (2)
	legal (1)
	legally (1)
	legend (1)
	Len (1)
	length (1)
	less (3)
	letter (11)
	letters (6)
	level (1)
	libraries (1)
	Library (2)
	licensed (1)
	life (1)
	light (5)
	likes (1)
	limitations (1)
	limited (4)
	line (93)
	linear (3)
	lines (15)
	Link (20)
	list (6)
	listed (2)
	listen (1)
	listened (2)
	literally (1)
	Little (35)
	live (6)
	load (9)
	loads (1)
	local (3)
	located (17)
	location (9)
	locations (4)
	Lockwood (1)
	long (1)
	long-term (1)
	longer (1)
	look (27)
	looked (5)
	looking (26)
	looks (1)
	Loop (6)
	loop-in (2)
	looped (3)
	lose (1)
	lost (2)
	lot (16)
	love (1)
	low (1)
	lower (3)
	lowest (1)

	M
	mail (1)
	mailed (2)
	mailers (2)
	mailing (2)
	mailings (4)
	maintained (1)
	maintenance (1)
	major (3)
	majority (1)
	making (3)
	Maledon (1)
	manage (1)
	management (2)
	manager (5)
	managers (1)
	managing (1)
	mandated (1)
	manufacturers (2)
	many (10)
	map (21)
	maps (5)
	March (9)
	Maricopa (8)
	mark (5)
	marked (7)
	Marta (1)
	Mary (3)
	Mason (2)
	masse (1)
	master's (2)
	material (1)
	materials (2)
	matter (7)
	matters (1)
	may (12)
	Maybe (6)
	mean (6)
	meaning (1)
	means (3)
	mechanical (1)
	media (12)
	medical (3)
	meet (3)
	meeting (2)
	meetings (1)
	megawatts (1)
	Meghan (2)
	MEMBER (133)
	members (13)
	mention (2)
	mentioned (11)
	Mesa (48)
	Mesa's (3)
	Meta (37)
	Meta's (12)
	Meta-owned (1)
	methods (3)
	Metro (1)
	Mexico (1)
	microphones (1)
	midday (1)
	middle (3)
	might (14)
	migratory (2)
	mile (6)
	miles (4)
	milestone (1)
	milestones (3)
	Mill (2)
	million (8)
	minds (1)
	minimal (3)
	minimum (2)
	mining (2)
	minute (5)
	minutes (3)
	minutes' (1)
	mishap (1)
	missed (2)
	misstatement (1)
	mistake (1)
	mitigate (2)
	mitigating (2)
	mitigation (5)
	mix (1)
	mixed (5)
	mixed-use (2)
	moment (2)
	Monday (3)
	month (1)
	more (35)
	morning (6)
	most (9)
	mostly (1)
	motion (3)
	motions (2)
	Mountain (1)
	move (11)
	Moving (2)
	much (10)
	multiple (7)
	municipalities (1)
	MVA (1)
	myself (2)

	N
	name (7)
	Nation (1)
	nationally (2)
	Native (3)
	natural (3)
	nature (7)
	Navajo (2)
	near (2)
	nearby (1)
	necessary (5)
	need (32)
	needed (15)
	needs (1)
	negative (1)
	negligible (1)
	neighborhood (1)
	Neither (1)
	NEPA (7)
	nest (1)
	nesting (1)
	nests (2)
	network (2)
	new (9)
	news (6)
	newspaper (1)
	newspapers (1)
	Next (19)
	Nextdoor (4)
	nice (2)
	night (4)
	nobody (1)
	noise (9)
	non-jurisdictional (2)
	none (1)
	noon (1)
	nor (1)
	normal (1)
	normally (2)
	north (18)
	north-south (1)
	northeast (3)
	northern (2)
	northwest (4)
	Nos (1)
	not-too- (1)
	notably (1)
	note (17)
	noted (1)
	notice (21)
	noticeable (1)
	noticed (3)
	notices (2)
	notification (16)
	notify (4)
	notifying (1)
	nuclear (1)
	number (18)
	numbers (2)

	O
	oath (2)
	objection (1)
	obligation (1)
	observation (1)
	observing (1)
	obstacles (1)
	obtained (1)
	obvious (2)
	obviously (5)
	occur (3)
	occurring (3)
	off (14)
	offer (2)
	offered (3)
	offering (2)
	offers (1)
	offhand (1)
	office (1)
	officials (1)
	offline (1)
	offset (1)
	on-site (1)
	on-the-ground (5)
	once (2)
	one (59)
	one-and-a-half-hour (1)
	ones (1)
	ongoing (4)
	online (7)
	only (7)
	onto (1)
	open (25)
	opening (3)
	operate (1)
	operating (1)
	operational (2)
	opinion (1)
	opportunities (2)
	opportunity (6)
	opposed (1)
	opposition (2)
	option (3)
	options (3)
	orange (1)
	order (13)
	ordinance (1)
	orient (3)
	Osborn (1)
	others (1)
	Otherwise (4)
	ought (2)
	ourselves (2)
	out (32)
	outline (3)
	outlined (4)
	outlining (1)
	outreach (30)
	outset (1)
	outskirts (1)
	over (12)
	over-our-fault-current (1)
	overall (3)
	overflow (1)
	overhead (5)
	overloading (1)
	overloads (3)
	overnight (1)
	overseeing (1)
	overview (1)
	owl (2)
	own (6)
	owned (2)
	ownership (2)

	P
	PAD (4)
	pad-mounted (1)
	PADs (3)
	page (8)
	paid (1)
	Palmer (7)
	panel (5)
	panelists (1)
	paper (1)
	papers (1)
	parallel (1)
	paraphrasing (1)
	parcel (4)
	parcels (3)
	parks (1)
	Parkway (2)
	part (13)
	participants (1)
	participate (2)
	participated (1)
	participating (1)
	particular (7)
	partnering (2)
	partners (1)
	parts (1)
	passive (1)
	past (1)
	patience (3)
	patiently (1)
	paying (2)
	PDF (1)
	peak (1)
	peaking (1)
	Pear (15)
	pedestrian (2)
	people (11)
	per (8)
	Perales-Howard (1)
	percent (1)
	performed (2)
	perhaps (4)
	perimeter (2)
	period (3)
	permanent (1)
	permitted (1)
	permitting (2)
	person (5)
	personally (1)
	personnel (1)
	perspective (3)
	petitioner (1)
	phase (9)
	phases (1)
	Phoenix (3)
	phone (4)
	photo (5)
	photograph (1)
	photos (1)
	physical (1)
	physically (2)
	pick (1)
	picture (1)
	piece (1)
	place (3)
	placed (3)
	Placemat (1)
	placemats (1)
	places (1)
	plan (16)
	planned (27)
	Planners (1)
	Planning (11)
	plans (10)
	plant (4)
	plants (3)
	platted (1)
	play (1)
	please (12)
	pleasure (1)
	plus (1)
	pm (9)
	podium (1)
	point (10)
	pointed (1)
	points (2)
	pole (5)
	poles (3)
	policy (1)
	Pollio (71)
	Pollio's (1)
	portals (1)
	portfolio (1)
	portion (12)
	position (2)
	positions (1)
	possible (3)
	post (1)
	postcard (13)
	postcards (4)
	posted (4)
	potential (6)
	potentially (2)
	Power (41)
	practice (1)
	preclude (1)
	preconstruction (2)
	predominantly (1)
	prefer (2)
	preference (1)
	prehearing (2)
	preliminary (1)
	preparation (2)
	prepare (2)
	prepared (4)
	present (11)
	presentation (2)
	presentations (1)
	presented (4)
	presenter's (1)
	presenters (1)
	presenting (1)
	preservation (1)
	pretty (1)
	preview (1)
	Previous (2)
	previously (7)
	Prickly (15)
	pride (2)
	primarily (1)
	primary (1)
	prior (6)
	priority (1)
	private (8)
	proactive (1)
	probably (4)
	problem (3)
	procedural (8)
	proceed (1)
	proceedings (2)
	process (13)
	program (1)
	Project (147)
	project's (2)
	Projects (11)
	promote (1)
	proper (1)
	properties (1)
	property (12)
	propose (3)
	proposed (29)
	proposes (1)
	proposing (1)
	protected (1)
	provide (26)
	provided (6)
	provides (2)
	providing (2)
	proving (3)
	provisions (1)
	proximity (3)
	public (70)
	public's (1)
	publication (1)
	publications (2)
	publicize (2)
	published (2)
	pull (4)
	pulled (9)
	pulling (1)
	purplish-blue (1)
	purpose (1)
	purposes (4)
	Pursuant (3)
	pursues (1)
	put (6)
	puts (2)

	Q
	Quality (2)
	Queen (1)
	questioners (1)
	quick (9)
	quickly (2)
	quietly (1)
	quite (1)
	quorum (1)

	R
	R1 (3)
	R12 (1)
	R14 (2)
	R19 (2)
	R2 (2)
	R20 (1)
	R21 (2)
	R23 (1)
	R25 (3)
	R27 (1)
	R29 (1)
	R30 (1)
	R31 (1)
	R33 (1)
	R34 (2)
	R38 (1)
	R39 (1)
	R47 (2)
	R49 (1)
	R55 (1)
	R56 (1)
	R58 (1)
	R61 (4)
	R62 (1)
	R63 (1)
	R64 (1)
	R65 (1)
	R66 (1)
	R67 (1)
	R69 (1)
	R7 (2)
	R70 (1)
	R71 (2)
	R8 (4)
	radio (1)
	radius (3)
	raise (1)
	raised (1)
	ramp (2)
	ranked (2)
	rapidly (1)
	rare (1)
	rather (6)
	re-sent (1)
	reach (1)
	reaching (2)
	read (2)
	reading (2)
	ready (4)
	real (4)
	realize (1)
	really (11)
	reason (5)
	reasons (1)
	recall (2)
	receive (4)
	received (9)
	receives (1)
	recent (1)
	recently (4)
	receptor (1)
	receptors (2)
	recess (10)
	recessed (1)
	recesses (1)
	recommend (2)
	recommendation (5)
	reconnaissance (1)
	reconsider (1)
	record (13)
	records (1)
	recreation (6)
	recreation-type (1)
	Recreational (13)
	rectangle (2)
	recycle (1)
	red (4)
	redundancy (5)
	refer (2)
	reference (1)
	referenced (2)
	references (1)
	referencing (2)
	referred (1)
	referring (1)
	refers (2)
	reflective (1)
	regarding (15)
	regards (1)
	region (2)
	regional (4)
	regionally (1)
	regularly (1)
	regulated (1)
	regulation (1)
	regulations (1)
	related (1)
	relates (1)
	relations (1)
	relative (1)
	relatively (1)
	release (3)
	releases (5)
	relevant (1)
	reliability (12)
	reliable (2)
	reliably (2)
	remain (2)
	remaining (1)
	remark (1)
	remarks (3)
	remember (1)
	remembering (1)
	remind (2)
	reminds (1)
	rendering (2)
	renderings (2)
	renewable (2)
	rep (1)
	replacement (1)
	report (2)
	reporter (2)
	represent (4)
	representation (1)
	representative (4)
	representatives (1)
	represented (1)
	representing (3)
	represents (7)
	Republic (2)
	request (6)
	requested (2)
	requesting (6)
	require (1)
	required (5)
	requirement (2)
	requirements (4)
	requires (2)
	rescheduled (1)
	residence (6)
	resident (1)
	residential (4)
	residents (3)
	resolve (1)
	Resource (3)
	Resources (17)
	respect (1)
	responding (1)
	response (11)
	responses (3)
	responsibilities (2)
	rest (3)
	restoration (5)
	restore (1)
	restored (3)
	restoring (1)
	restrictions (1)
	restroom (1)
	result (1)
	resulted (1)
	results (2)
	retail (1)
	retention (1)
	returning (1)
	revenue (1)
	review (9)
	reviewed (2)
	reviewing (1)
	revised (1)
	Rick (6)
	right (50)
	right-hand (2)
	right-of-way (11)
	ring (1)
	riparian (1)
	River (6)
	Road (32)
	roads (1)
	Robert's (2)
	robust (3)
	role (4)
	room (5)
	Roosevelt (1)
	rotate (1)
	roughly (4)
	route (9)
	routes (4)
	Rules (2)
	run (4)
	running (6)
	runs (7)

	S
	safe (1)
	safely (1)
	safety (1)
	Salmon (1)
	Salt (3)
	Sam (1)
	Samantha (3)
	same (9)
	sample (5)
	Santan (1)
	satisfied (1)
	satisfy (1)
	saw (2)
	saying (3)
	scale (1)
	scenic (10)
	schedule (3)
	school (5)
	schools (2)
	Science (3)
	scope (1)
	Scott (15)
	screen (10)
	screens (1)
	seated (1)
	second (6)
	seconded (1)
	section (4)
	sector (2)
	secure (1)
	secured (1)
	Seeing (1)
	seeking (3)
	seem (1)
	seemed (1)
	select (2)
	selected (1)
	self-explanatory (1)
	selfish (1)
	semi-conductor (1)
	semiconductor (1)
	send (5)
	sending (1)
	senile (1)
	senior (2)
	sense (7)
	sensitive (9)
	sent (7)
	sentiments (1)
	separating (1)
	series (1)
	serious (2)
	serve (19)
	served (6)
	serves (3)
	service (10)
	serviced (1)
	serving (5)
	session (5)
	set (3)
	setbacks (1)
	settle (1)
	several (2)
	shaking (1)
	shame (1)
	share (4)
	sheet (3)
	shift (1)
	short (9)
	shorter (1)
	shortest (3)
	shortly (5)
	shot (1)
	show (14)
	showcase (3)
	showcasing (1)
	showed (2)
	showing (3)
	shown (21)
	shows (12)
	side (9)
	Sidewinder (1)
	sign (1)
	Signal (2)
	signals (1)
	signed (2)
	significance (1)
	significant (4)
	signs (3)
	silence (1)
	similar (3)
	simple (1)
	simulate (3)
	simulated (5)
	simulates (1)
	simulations (3)
	single (2)
	sit (1)
	site (18)
	sited (1)
	sites (4)
	siting (8)
	sits (1)
	sitting (1)
	situation (2)
	slide (20)
	slides (6)
	slip (1)
	small (2)
	smaller (1)
	smiling (1)
	social (11)
	solar (1)
	somebody (2)
	somehow (1)
	someone (5)
	sometime (1)
	somewhere (1)
	son (1)
	sorry (5)
	sort (1)
	Sossaman (1)
	source (3)
	sources (1)
	south (21)
	Southeast (17)
	space (4)
	spaces (3)
	spacing (1)
	Spanish (1)
	spans (1)
	speak (2)
	speaking (1)
	specializing (1)
	species (3)
	specific (9)
	specifically (6)
	specifics (2)
	spells (1)
	spend (1)
	SPL (5)
	spoke (1)
	square (1)
	SRP (69)
	SRP's (12)
	SRP-1 (1)
	SRP-2 (1)
	SRP-4 (1)
	SRP-6 (1)
	SRP-owned (2)
	stability (2)
	staff (11)
	Staff's (1)
	stakeholder (10)
	stakeholders (6)
	stand (6)
	standard (2)
	standards (1)
	start (17)
	started (4)
	starting (5)
	starts (1)
	State (47)
	stated (3)
	states (1)
	stating (1)
	Station (1)
	stats (2)
	statute (1)
	statutorily (2)
	statutory (6)
	stay (5)
	step (4)
	stepped (1)
	stick (1)
	still (6)
	straight (1)
	Strategic (1)
	strategies (3)
	streets (1)
	strictly (1)
	stripe (1)
	striped (1)
	strong (1)
	Strouss (1)
	structure (4)
	structures (9)
	studied (2)
	studies (9)
	study (9)
	subdivision (1)
	subdivisions (1)
	subject (2)
	submitted (1)
	substantively (1)
	substation (86)
	substations (5)
	subtransmission (1)
	suggested (1)
	suggestion (1)
	suggestions (1)
	suitable (1)
	summarize (12)
	summary (5)
	summer (1)
	superimposed (1)
	supervision (1)
	supervisor (1)
	supplement (1)
	supplied (1)
	supply (3)
	supplying (1)
	support (9)
	supported (1)
	supporting (1)
	supports (1)
	suppose (1)
	sure (24)
	surprised (1)
	surrounded (1)
	surrounding (1)
	survey (9)
	surveyed (1)
	surveys (4)
	susceptible (3)
	swear (2)
	switch (5)
	switches (4)
	switchgear (2)
	Switchyard (3)
	sworn (2)
	system (24)
	Systems (1)

	T
	table (4)
	tablets (1)
	talk (4)
	talked (6)
	talking (10)
	talks (1)
	tall (1)
	tap (1)
	target (1)
	teal (1)
	team (1)
	TECH (6)
	technical (2)
	technologies (3)
	technology (4)
	telephone (2)
	Tempe (2)
	temporary (4)
	Ten-Year (1)
	term (1)
	terminate (1)
	terminus (1)
	terms (1)
	terrible (1)
	terrific (1)
	territory (4)
	testified (2)
	testify (2)
	testimony (14)
	Thanks (1)
	therefore (7)
	third (3)
	though (9)
	thought (6)
	thoughts (2)
	three (7)
	throughout (1)
	Thursday (1)
	tie (1)
	tied (4)
	times (4)
	Toby (4)
	Tod (6)
	today (17)
	together (2)
	told (1)
	tomorrow (24)
	tomorrow's (1)
	tonight (3)
	tool (1)
	tools (1)
	top (5)
	topic (2)
	topics (2)
	topographical (1)
	total (5)
	tour (18)
	touring (1)
	tours (2)
	toward (1)
	towards (2)
	town (1)
	towns (2)
	transcribe (1)
	transcript (3)
	transcripts (1)
	transfer (1)
	transform (2)
	transformation (4)
	transformer (3)
	transformers (11)
	transmission (70)
	transportation (1)
	traveled (1)
	treat (1)
	tribal (2)
	tribes (3)
	Tribune (1)
	tried (1)
	triggered (1)
	trip (1)
	trouble (1)
	troubling (1)
	true (4)
	truth (2)
	try (7)
	trying (3)
	Tuesday (9)
	turn (8)
	Twenty-Two (1)
	two (19)
	tying (2)
	type (7)
	types (2)
	typical (5)
	typo (1)
	typographical (3)

	U
	ultimately (4)
	under (13)
	underground (6)
	undergrounding (5)
	underlying (1)
	underneath (2)
	understands (2)
	understood (1)
	undertook (1)
	undeveloped (3)
	unfortunately (4)
	unique (3)
	University (5)
	unless (4)
	untie (1)
	up (22)
	update (2)
	updated (1)
	upgrades (1)
	uploaded (1)
	upon (2)
	urban (1)
	usage (1)
	use (46)
	used (6)
	uses (23)
	using (13)
	usually (1)
	utility (2)
	utilized (2)

	V
	vacant (9)
	Valley (1)
	variety (3)
	vegetation (2)
	venture (1)
	verbal (3)
	verify (1)
	versions (1)
	vertically (2)
	via (1)
	vicinity (3)
	video (2)
	videos (1)
	view (14)
	viewpoints (4)
	views (2)
	virtual (20)
	virtually (18)
	visible (4)
	Visitor (1)
	visitors (2)
	visits (1)
	visual (9)
	visuals (1)
	vital (1)
	voltage (4)
	volume (3)
	vote (15)
	voted (1)
	votes (1)

	W
	wait (9)
	waiting (1)
	wants (4)
	Warner (6)
	Washington (1)
	watching (2)
	Water (24)
	way (8)
	ways (1)
	wealth (1)
	weather (3)
	website (8)
	Wednesday (3)
	week (3)
	weeks (2)
	Welcome (4)
	west (5)
	west-east (1)
	Western (2)
	wetlands (1)
	what's (2)
	whenever (4)
	white (4)
	who's (1)
	whomever (1)
	wildlife (7)
	Williams (2)
	wind (1)
	wish (3)
	wished (1)
	wishes (3)
	within (20)
	Without (1)
	witness (4)
	witnesses (5)
	wondering (1)
	Woolfolk (115)
	Woolfolk's (1)
	Word (1)
	words (1)
	work (7)
	worked (4)
	working (2)
	works (1)
	worries (1)
	worth (1)
	wrap (1)
	writing (1)
	written (3)
	wrong (3)
	wrongfully (1)
	wrote (1)

	Y
	year (7)
	years (9)
	yelled (1)
	yellow (1)
	Yep (4)

	Z
	Zach (1)
	ZIP (3)
	zoning (11)
	zoom (1)
	zoom-out (2)
	Zuckerberg (1)



